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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 1997.

Principal activity

The company holds investments in subsidiary undertakings engaged in oil and gas production and
exploration.

Results

The profit for the year, after taxation, of £2,150,017,000, less interim dividend of £2,100,000,000 and
Preference dividend of £12,040,000, when added to the retained profit brought forward at I January
1997 of £179,754,000 gives a total retained profit carried forward at 31 December 1997 of

© £217,731,000.

Directors

Mr R L Olver served as a director of the company throughout the financiai year. On 1 July 1997 Dr
B E Grote resigned as a director of the company. Dr D C Allen was appointed on 31 July 1997. On
1 September 1997 Dr A B Hayward and Dr J E Golden were appointed as additional directors. Mr
R F Chase ceased to be a director of the company on 31st December 1997 and Mr Olver was
appointed as Chairman and Chief Executive on 1st January 1998.

Directors' interests

The interests of the directors holding office at 31 December 1997, other than directors of the ultimate
parent undertaking, and their families, in the 25p ordinary shares of The British Petroleum Company
p.l.c. were as set out below:

As at 31 December 1997  As at 1 January 1997 or date
of appointment

DC Allen 36,491 * 26,691 *
JE Golden 20,876 * 20,876 *
AB Hayward 13,236 13,142

* 12,684 of Dr Allen’s interests and all of Dr Golden’s interests are held in ADS form
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BP EXPLORATION COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ interests (continued)

In addition, rights to subscribe for 25p ordinary shares in The British Petroleum Company plc, were
granted to, or exercised by, those directors between 1 January, or the date of their appointment, and
31 December 1997 as follows:

Granted Exercised
DC Allen Nil 16,800
JE Golden Nil Nil
AB Hayward 1,790 Nil

No director had any interest in the shares or debentures of subsidiary undertakings of The British
Petroleum Company p.l.c. at 31 December 1997.

Policy and practice with respect to payment of suppliers

It is the company’s policy to follow the CBI’s prompt payment code of practice for all suppliers to the
company. A copy of the code of practice may be obtained from the CBI.

Auditors

In accordance with Section 386 of the Companies Act 1985, the company has elected to dispense with

the obligation to appoint auditors annually and Emnst & Young continue in office.

order of the Board

RD Morris, Secretary

Registered Office,
Burnside Road,

Farburn Industrial Estate,
Dyce, Aberdeen, AB2 0PB

28th September 1998




BP EXPLORATION COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ACCOUNTS

Company law requires the directors to prepare accounts for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that
period. In preparing those accounts, the directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

e prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and which enable them to
ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are also for taking responsible
steps to safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm that they have complied with these requirements and having a reasonable
expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operation existence for the
foreseeable future, continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.




BP EXPLORATION COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
BP EXPLORATION COMPANY LIMITED

We have audited the accounts on pages 5 to 12 which have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and on the basis of the accounting policies set out on page 3.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described on page 3 the company's directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts. It
is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and to
report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices
Board. An audit inciudes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately

disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the accounts are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the accounts.

Opinion

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at 31
December 1997 and of the profit for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companties Act 1985.

EMQ%’S\,;»WO)

Ernst & Young
Registered Auditor
London

28th September 1998




BP EXPLORATION COMPANY LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting convention

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable UK
accounting standards.

As the ultimate parent undertaking has published a group cash flow statement in compliance with
Financial Reporting Standard No. 1 (Revised), a cash flow statement is not presented in these
accounts.

Group accounts

Group accounts are not submitted as the company is exempt from the obligation to prepare group
accounts under Section 228(1) of the Companies Act 1985. The results of subsidiary and associated
undertakings are dealt with in the consolidated accounts of the uitimate parent undertaking, The
British Petroleum Company p.l.c., a company registered in England and Wales.

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Assets and liabilities in currencies other than sterling are translated into sterling at closing rate of

exchange. All exchange gains and losses on settlement or translation at closing rates of exchange of
monetary assets and liabilities are included in the determination of profit for the year.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is calculated using the liability method. Provision is made or recovery anticipated

e

where timing differences are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.




BP EXPLORATION COMPANY LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1997

Note 1997 1996
£000 £000
Other income 1 2,101,660 600,138
Provisions released 55,440 7,458
Operating profit on ordinary activities before
interest and tax 2,157,100 607,596
Operating exchange gain/(loss) (986) 3,991
Interest payable and similar charges 2 1,778 1,210
Profit before taxation 2,154,336 610,377
Taxation 3 4,319 -
Profit for the financial year 2,150,017 610,377

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1997

There are no recognised gains or losses, atiributable to the shareholders of the company, other than
the profit of £2,150,017 for the year ended 31 December 1997 (1996 profit of £610,377,000).




BP EXPLORATION COMPANY LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 1997

Note 1997 1996
£000 £000
Fixed assets
Investments 6 4,072,927 4,070,889
Current assets
Debtors 7 79,351 691,289
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 8 (3,154,212} (4,242,799)
Net current liabilities (3,074,861) (3,551,510)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 998,066 519,379
Creditors - amouats falling due
after more than one year b - 79,290
Shareholders’ interest 998,066 440,089
Represented by
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 9 780,335 260,335
Reserves 10 217,731 179,754
998,066 440,089

R L Olver, Chairman

28th September 1998




BP EXPLORATION COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. Other income
1997 1996
£000 £000
Income from shares in subsidiary undertakings 2,101,660 600,138
2,101,660 600,138
2. Interest payable and similar charges
1997 1996
£000 £000
Interest payable to subsidiary undertakings 1,778 1,210
1,778 1,210
3. Taxation
1997 1996
£000 £000
United Kingdom Corporation Tax
Current at 31.5% (1996 33%) - -
Overseas tax relief - -
Advance corporation tax 4,319 -
4,319 -
Overseas taxation
Current _ - -
Taxation Charge for the year 4,319 -

The company is a member of a group for the purposes of relief under Section 402 of the Income
and Corporation Taxes Act 1988. Owing to the availability of group relief, no provision for
corporation tax has been made in the accounts of this company. The group’s current corporation
tax liability has been provided in the accounts of BP International Limited, a fellow subsidiary
undertaking (Note 1).

Provision for deferred taxation is not required.
4. Directors

None of the directors received any fees or remuneration for services as director of the company
during the financial year (1996 £Nil)
L

i




BP EXPLORATION COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Distribution to shareholders

Ordinary - interim
Preference

Fixed assets - investments

Cost

At 1 January 1997 and 31 December 1996
Additions

Deletions

31 December 1997

Amounts provided
At 1 January 1997
Deletions

31 December 1997

Net book amount
At 31 December 1997

At 31 December 1996

1997

£000

2,100,000

12,040

2,112,040

Subsidiary Associated
undertakings  undertakings
Shares Shares
£000 £000
4,070,568 322
2,037 -
4,072,605 322
4,072,605 322
4,070,567 322

The investments in the subsidiary and associated undertakings are unlisted.

1996
£000

576,420
5,237

581,657

Total
£000

4,070,890
2,037

4,072,927

4,072,927

4,070,889

In the opinion of the directors, the value of the shares and ioans in the company’s subsidiary and
associated undertakings is not less than the amount at which they are shown in the balance sheet.

The more important subsidiary and associated undertakings of the company at 31 December
1997 and the percentage of equity capital held are set out below. The principal ¢ountry of
operation is generally indicated by the company’s country of incorporation or by its name. A
complete list of investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings will be attached to the
parent company’s annual return made to the Registrar of Companies.

Y




BP EXPLORATION COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

6. Fixed assets - investments (continued)

Country of Principal
Subsidiary undertakings % incorporation activity
BP Exploration (Finance) Ltd 100 England and Wales  Investment company
BP Exploration Company (Middle East) Ltd 100 England and Wales  Holding company
BP Exploration Operating Company Ltd 100 England and Wales  Exploration and
production
BP Norway Ltd 100 England and Wales  Exploration and
production
BP (Abu Dhabi) Ltd 100 England and Wales  Exploration and
production
BP Energy Ltd 100 England and Wales  Exploration and
production
BP Exploration Mexico Ltd 100 England and Wales  Exploration and
production
BP Exploration Orinoco Ltd 100 England and Wales  Exploration and
production
Country of Principal Issued share capital
Associated undertakings %o incorporation activity
Abu Dhabi Marine Operating  14.67  Abu Dhabi Refining and 10,000 ordinary shares
Company marketing of DH100 each
BP Japan Oil Development 50 Scotland Refining and 50,000 ordinary shares
Company Ltd marketing of £1 each
272,500 deferred
ordinary shares of £1
each
7. Debtors
1997 1996
£000 £000
Parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 6,150 624,545
Associated undertakings 73,201 65,435
Other - 1,309

79,351 691,289




BP EXPLORATION COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Creditors
1997 1996
Within After Within After
| year 1 year 1 year L year
£000 £000 £000 £000
Parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 3,154,212 - 4,241,490 79,290
Other - - 1,309 -
3,154,212 - 4,242,799 79,290
Called up share capital
1997 1996
£000 £000
Ordinary Share Capital
Authorised, issued and fully paid:
260,335,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 260,335 260,335
Preference Share capital
Authorised
5,400,000 redeemable cumulative preference shares of
£100 each. 540,000 260,000
Issued and fully paid
5,200,000 redeemable cumulative preference shares of
£100 each 520,000

’

On 17 February 1997 the authorised share capital was increased to £800,335,000 by the creation
of a further 2,800,000 redeemable cumulative preference shares of £100 each. Between
19 February and 25 March 1997, 5,200,000 redeemable cumulative preference shares were
issued at par as part of the financing strategy for the BP group

The redeemable cumulative preference shares are redeemable on four days’ notice and are
entitled to a fixed cumulative preference dividend, but carry no right to vote.




BP EXPLORATION COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

10. Reconciliation of sharcholders funds and movements on reserves

Share Capital Reserves Total
£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 1996 335 151,034 151,369
Profit for the year - 610,377 610,377
Increase in ordinary share capital 260,000 - 260,000
Distribution to shareholders -
Ordinary Dividend (576,420) (576,420
Preference Dividend (5.237) (5.237)
At 1 January 1997 260,335 179,754 440,089
Profit for the year - 2,150,017 2,150,017
Increase in preference share capital 520,000 - 520,000
Distribution to sharcholders
Ordinary Dividend - (2,100,000} (2,100,000)
Preference Dividend - (12,040) (12,040)
At 31 December 1997 780,335 217,731 998,066

11. Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemptions contained within FRS 8, and does not
disclose transactions with group companies.

12. Ultimate parent undertaking

The ultimate parent undertaking of the group of undertakings for which group accounts are
drawn up, and of which the company is a member, is The British Petroleum Company p.l.c., a
company registered in England and Wales. Copies of The British Petroleum Company p.L¢.’s
accounts can be obtained from Britannic House, 1 Finsbury Circus, London EC2M TBA.

-12 -







Front cover Iu the 19205, a field
of daffodils inspived twe senior
execurives fron the Freuch office
af the Auglo-Pevsian Gil Company,
s BP was thes called, who were
seeking distinciive colotrs for its
new range of kevbside pervol pumps
in Envape. The combination of the
vitality of green and the freshuess
of yellow, adopted in 1931 as the
campany’s house colours, has
remarined part of BIs corporare
branding ever since

The world’s need for energy is erowine steadily
{‘. bal o A

day by day. Energy and macerials, used safely and
efficiently. are essential to the prosperity and growth
ol every couniry and every region in the world.
Sustaining and enhancing our quality of life depends
on them.

To play a teading role in mecting these needs
from oil, gas. solar power and petrochemicals

without damaging the environment is BP% goal,

Qurs is a positive involvement. Innovation will
be the hallmark of the way we work with people,
technology, assets and reladonships. We will always
be constructive. Our success depends on our making.
and l}cing seen o make, a distinctve contribution in
aih we do.

BP is committed o reporting not only ity
Anancial results but also its social and environmental
performance. For a full picture of our performance
during the vear, this report shoutd be read in
conjunction with HSE Faaets: Health, Safery aud the
Fuvivoiien: 1997 and the BP Social Report 1997,

Details are given on page 67,

The Brivish Petrolenm Company pdoc. is the holding compriry of
one of the world’s largest petraleim and petrochemicals groups.
Our main activities ave exploration and production of crnde oil
and natural gasi refining, marvheting, supply and transporiation;
and mannfacturing and mavketing of petrochemicals, We bave
a growing activity in selar power generation.

BP s major operations in Eurape, Novtl and Sonth America,
Asia, Awstralasia and parts of Africa. We are expanding our

g 2 i3
global presence.




dividends {pence per share)

25

capital expenditure and
acquisitions (£ billion)
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net debt (£ billion - end year)
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“Your board

is committed to

the best principles of
corporate governance.
For you, the
sharcholders, our
commitment is to
building not just
short-term, but
long-term, value”

It is a privilege for me to follow David
Simon as your chairman. As you know, the
Prime Minister invited him to join the new
British government last May — a signal
honour. I am sure you will join me in
wishing Lord Simon well
in his role as Minister for
Trade and Competitiveness
in Europe.

David Simon gave
BP 36 years of unstinting,
efforc. He rook over as
group chief executive at a
difficult rime in June 1992,
and led the company’s
recovery with distinction,

both in chat role and later

He took the necessary
tough decisions, while kecping the respect
and loyalty of his colleagues. I thank him
for his outstanding contribution.

Today BP is well placed to build on
the solid foundations that have been laid.
In the past year we have again made
significant progress. We opened up exciting
new prospects and formed important
new alliances. Replacement cost profit
before exceptional items grew by 13% to
$4.6 billion (£2.8 billion). It is particularly
pleasing that all areas of the company
contribured ro this performance, which has
cnabled us 1o raise the dividend by 13% to
22 pence, 3 new peak. Debr remains at a

prudent level, and our balance sheer is strong.

Competition

The oif industry has changed out of all
recognition during the 1990s, and the
integration of the world cconomy has
opened up competition on a global scale.

Our industry is full of hungry newcomers

as chairman from July 1995.

with something to prove, and the pressure
on costs is unrelenting, Let me give you a
simple example.

An imporrant measure of performance
in our industry is the cost of finding and
developing a barrel of oil. Five years ago thar
cost averaged $5.77. Last year it had fallen
to $4.78, a drop of almest 20%. BP’s
investment in technological innovation is
giving us the edge to meet - and beat — our
compertitors in this demanding environment.

Olur executive team, so ably led by John
Browne, is well aware of the competitive
challenges, not just in exploration and
production but also in our refining,
marketing and chemicals businesses.

The performance improvements they have
already achieved put us at the forefront of
the industry. But the targets are constantly
moving, and it is your board’s task to ensure

that progress is maintained.

Peopie

BP has many vatuable assets. As your new
chairman, [ belicve that none of these is
more valuable than its people, some 56,000
of them across the globe, who devote their
working lives to the company.

The extraordinary pace of global change
places increasing demands on them, affecting
how and where they work. T know that our
management is determined to confront these
challenges in a positive way.

We expect the best from our employees.
In return they are entitled 1o our full
support, to the opportunicy to fulhl heir
potential - and ro a sense of pride and dignity
in their company and its mission. [ seeking
high achievement we must be willing o offer
people high rewards when they consistently
meet and exceed demanding targets. Sustained

excellent performance benefits us all.




New frontiers

BP’s history spans the 20th century. As we
approach the 21st, we are exploring new
frontiers — in South America, in Asia and,
most remarkably of all, in the opening up
of the old Soviet Union — a historic change
that takes the European oil industry back
1o its birthplace in the 1870s.

This gives us a new opportunity ro
define our role. We admire the pioneering
spirit of the 19th-century explorers, but
today our approach must also reflect the
needs of che nations in which we work.
Many are young and sl adjusting to the
economic rules — such as profit — that we
follow. We must go genly, be construcrive
and plan for the long term.

T'his approach influences the way
we respond to other ropics o, Concern
on environmental issucs is growing, and
we aim to be responsible citizens of our
small planct. In two importanc speeches
during the year, John Browne has sought
to contribuge to the debare on global
climate change.

BY is ready to listen and calk to those
who approach thesc issues from a different
perspective. We ask that they understand
our position as a commercial company,
our need to find, produce and distribuse
the energy the world needs, to contribute
ta cconomic progress, and to achieve a

good return for our investors.

BP has almost half a million share-

holders. I am conscious of the need 1o
keep you all informed of our hopes and
plans. We need to communicase simply
and effectively — which is not always easy,
given the legal and regulatory obligations
placed on us by different jurisdictions.
Of course, the annual general meeting

is a welcome occasion for dialogue with
shareholders, and we took steps last year

to improve the opportunity for discussion.

The board

As well as Lord Simon, two direcrors left
BP’s board during the year. Russelk Seal,
managing director responsible for human
resources, community affairs and health,
safety and the environment, retired after
33 years, and Dr Rolf Stomberg, managing
director of our downstream operations,
retired after 27 years. We chank them for
their considerable contribution.

Rodney Chase was appointed deputy
group chicf exceutive in January 1998,
with responsibility for downstream
acrivigics.

We welcomed three new board
members — Sir lan Prosser, chairman of the
Bass brewing and leisure group, as a non-
executive director, Dr Chris Gibson-Smith
as managing director t succeed Russell
Seal, and Richard Olver as managing

director, exploration and production.

Long-term value

Your board ts commirted to the best
principles of corporate governance. For
you, the sharcholders, our comimnitment is
to building not just short-term, but lang-
term, value,

As the new millennium approaches,
we have many exciting possibilitics. Our
joint venture with Mobil has strengthened
our retail presence throughour Europe.

The alliance with A O Sidanco in Russia
gives us access (o Major reseurees in Siberia.
We have established a foothold in China,
one of the biggest markets in the world.

Of necessity, some of these new ventures
will cake time. Be assured that, in developing
them, we will be constantly mindfut of
the retusns our sharcholders are entitled

(o expect.

Peter Sutherland
Chairman
10 february 1998




He is a Luna moih, wsually found in

North America, but currently residing

at a butterfly sanctuary in Europe.
Outside the sanctuary the winter
weather is im?mpemff, to say the
least. Hardly suitable for a creatire
that thrives in the summer. Still,
thanks to a bighly sensitive thermostat,

he is quiite at home. Good news for
him and the other exotic residents of

the sanctuary; good news for the many

thonsands who enjoy the attraction

and others like it around the world.
BP caw't claim direct eredit for the
health of the Luna moth, but we do
mmake a constructive contribution -
providing energy for the generation
of beat and light around the world.

Noiw thar's Positive Energy.







SYORD chief executive's

“Our strategy

does not rely on a
favourable external
environment. All our
targets are sct against
prudent assumptions

so that we can deliver

a strongly competitive
performance even when
economic cycles are

running against us”

T
(-

John Browne

Group Chief Executive

BP had another excellent year in 1997.
Replacement cost profit before exceptional
items was $4.6 billion (£2.8 billion) —a
record for the third year running — and
139% above last year. Qur return on capital
employed was maintained
at 17%.

Net income per barrel
upstream, where operating
profits rose by 2%, was
the highest in the industry.
Oil and gas reserves were
more than replaced for
the sixth year running,
despite a 2% production
increase ro 1.54 million
barrels of oil equivalent
a day. Our finding and
devclopment costs, at
$4.78 a barrel, again showed improvement,
remaining within our rarget range.

BP’s downstream business increased its
operating profit by 41% over 1996, despire
a more difficult trading envirenment in
key markers and low refining margins.
Significant volume rises — including 9%
in retail sales — were achicved, and the
improvements from our joint venture
with Mobil in Europe came in ahead
of targer,

The group's chemicals business achieved
a return on capital of 209, despite the weak
Deutschmark. Volumes grew by 12% and a
series of deals was concluded based on BIMs

proprietary technologies.

Performance

T'hese resules were delivered with licde help
fram the external environment. The oil price
was on average 6% lower than in 1996 at
$19.1 a barrel. Refinery margins remained

depressed and marketing margins continued

to be affected by intense comperition

in some arcas. In chemicals the trend of
the business cycle saw 2 small rise in B
average margins which was, however,
offset by currency effects. International
developments, generally in Asia and
specifically covering oil supply, mean that
the economic outlook remains unclear.

Qur strategy, however, does not rely on
a favourable external environment. All our
targets are sec against prudent assumprions
so that we can deliver a strongly compertitive
performance even when cconomic cycles
are running against us.

In 1996 we set out our medium-term
wargees, defined on the basis of unchanged
prices and margins. At their heart was an
aim to deliver $1.5 billion of underlying
performance improvements — cost savings
and volume increases — by the year 2000.
In 1996 we delivered $600 million of
such gains, againsc our initial target of
$300 million.

The target for 1997 was a further
$300 million. I am happy to report that
we delivered almost double che rarger.
Again, we have achieved this within
a disciplined financial framework, with
net debr ac the bottom of our target range
of $7--8 billion.

This strong financial performance
enabled us to increase the dividend by
139, linking our payout progressively o
underlying performanee improvements.

At 22 pence per share the dividend is now
110% higher than three years ago.

We are also purchasing some $500 million
of shares for future employee share schemes.

Growth in dividends has been balanced
by a sceady growth in capital expenditure.
Last year alone we invested 36.7 billion

(£4.4 billion).




Growth
"o build successful and sustained growth in
competitive global markers requires us to:
s+ continue to build our portfolio of
distincrive assets, with access to material
volumes of low-cost resources and 1o
commanding positions in growth markers
sustain an innovative, imaginative and
performance-focused managerial culture,
ateracting the best people and giving them
the freedom to deliver
e remain at the forefrone of technological
advance, accessing and applying the best
avzilable technology
s develop the quality of our relationships
with customers, suppliers, other companies,
communities and governments, on the basis
of mutual advantage '
« cxrend our global reach to ensuse we
have access to the best opportunities
available o the industry anywhere in
the world.
These principles lay behind the
successful developments of 1997.
Upstream, the global reach of our
exploration and production businesses was
significantly enhanced by innovative Russian
alliances — a 10% sharcholding in A O
Sidanco, 2 major integrated oil concern, and
a stake which is expected to grow to 30% in
Rusia, the company which owns the rights
to develop major oil and gas fields in Siberia.
We signed a new agreement in Kazakhstan
and strengthened our leadership position
in the Gulf of Mexico by the acquisition
of 111 new leases in the deep-water area.
The serength of our asset portfolio
was reinforced by the range of new ficlds
coming on stream in the Gulf of Mexico,
the Norch Sea, west of Shezgland and
Colombia. Total net production of oit and

gas rose by 2%. 797 million barrels of oil

equivalent were added to reserves in 1997.

Exploration successes in Alaska, Angola,
the Gulf of Mexico, Australia and the North
Sea ensure we not only have the resources to
replace growing volumes of production buc
to generate opportunities for the second
decade of the next century and beyond.

Qur upstream business remains at the
forefront of technological advance, designed
to reduce costs and improve the recovery
of hydrocarbons. For example, drilling
efficiency improvements are offsetting the
impact of inflation in the industry, enabling
us to keep our finding and development
costs on a declining trend.

Our downstream businesses are enjoying
similar successes, We have consolidated
leadership positions in a range of markets,
notably through innovative partnerships.
Our joint venture with Mobil in Europe
has been successfully impiemented in 25
countries and performance improvements
arc coming in ahead of schedule.

We are continuing to forge alliances with
recailers chat build on our complemenrary
skifls. Following last year’s agreement with
Safeway in the UK, similar deals were made
in Japan, Portugal and the Netherlands.
Comumercial businesses are opening the
way in new markets, with liquefied
petroleurn gas deals in China and Turkey,
and continued cxpansion of our aviation
business in the USA, Eastern Europe and
the Far East.

In refining, our aim is chat BPs
operations should be among the world’s
most efficient. This involves both closure
of weaker upirs, as in the Netherlands and
in respect of the lubricants manufacturing
plant at Llandarcy last year, and investment
to upgrade assets which have the potential

to reach top-level performance.

Everybody who works for
BP contributes to.our -
success and to making our
company distinctive ~ not

just in the performance that *

we achieve but also in the
ways we work together

and with others. We are
continually seeking to
stimulate new and creative
options for our business '
by drawing on the wide
diversity of skills, talents
and perspectives of all

who work for us.

Our goal is that everyona in
the company should
understand the factors
affecting the success of the
business and share in that
success. We encourage
employees to become
shareholders and to
participate in our employes
share ownership schemes,
We are committed to
providing a working
environment in which
everyone is treated falrty,
has assurance of protection
against any form of
harassment or unlawful
discrimination, and is able
to compete openly for poats
on the basis of merit.




Together with Venezuela's state-owned oli
company, BP is reactivating the dormant
Padernales ofl field, where access to the
operation Is only possible by barge or light plane.
We are taking care to minimise our Impact on this
environmentally sensitive area of the Orinoco river

Through new automation
systems at the Joint
Mobil/BP torminals at
Kingsbury, Birmingham,
weo are providing a more
efficient distribution
service for a full range
of fuel products

Marching bands with
elephants and camels
helped faunch Tata BP

Lubricants in northern and
westemn India. The Joint

venture is focusing on
the transport sector




In chemicals we continug to develop our
portfolio of world-class assets and markec
positions. We are investing with joint venture
pareners in Malaysia, Indonesia and China.
At Grangemouth in Scotland our ethylene
plant is on track to become the largest and
most cost-effective in Europe, Our agreement
with German chemicals company Hils ro
buy Stytenix Kunststoffe will make BI one
of Europe’s largest styrenics producers.

Technical strength and a record of
innovation are crucial to our ability to actract
high-quality partners. BP has proprietary
technologies in all its areas of strength —
polyethylene, acetic acid and acrylonitriles -
and a steady stream of process improvements
in new catalysts continues to maintain chis

competitive edge.

People

Building real competitive advantage depends
also on the creativity and effectiveness of
the 56,000 people who work for BP and

the culture in which they work. Success is as
much about the ‘software’ as the ‘hardware’.
It requires us to rethink the way we work —
to be quick on our feet and imaginative

in our relationships, giving staff space to
develop their ideas and make themn work.

This is the culture we have sought to
build at BP I believe the results are evident.
This annual report, like its predecessors, &
the story of the achievements of our people.

Today’s organisation in BP is based on
business units which have clear targets and
equally clearloperational freedom to meet
them. Bverything except the cote strategy
is decentralised.

The effect is a highly motivating
environment, But it is nor isolating;
managers and staff keep in touch, formally
and informally, with their peers to share
ideas and experiences, stimulate each other
and ensure continuous learning. Gur
remuneration systems aim. to correlate
personal rewards with the performance
of each business unic and also the overall
performance of the company. In this
way the interests of management and

shareholders are aligned.

Leadership and responsibility
The leading role BP plays in developing
resources around the world brings
responsibilities to our own people, to the

commutities within which we operate and

“to the wider world. Behaving ethically is

part of our core values.

We have developed a set of principles
covering such matters as health and safety,
ethics, the environment and human righs,
and an internal process to assure the board
that those principles are being applied
consistently in every area in which we are
involved.

We have a sustained record of
environmental protection, developed over
many years throughout our business.

Beyond the issues specific to our own
operations, however, we cannot ignore
public and political concern about the
impact of growing energy consumption
on the global environment. The science of
climate change may be provisional, bue the

concern. is reaf.
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gives us a discinctive position in an industry
which has dramatic potential for growth.
By 2020, solar and other renewable forms of
energy could supply 5% of the worlds energy
needs; over time that could rise significantly.
The environment is just one aspect of our
responsibilities to the communities around
the world in which we work. Wherever we
do business, we aim to eransfer technology
and skills. We helped the scientists of
Azerbaijan rebuild their academy and its
links with institutions around the world.
We helped students and children in Vietnam
learn English. We used bricks made from the
waste rock curtings produced by our drilling
operations in Colombia to build homes for
local people. In these and many other areas
BP aims to bring positive energy to the

communities in which we work.

In conclusion
it is the combination of these elements that
gives me the greatest confidence in BP's

future. Our strategy for groweh is clear and

“Our strategy for growth is clear and the results
demonstrate our commitment to disciplined performance.
BP has the people whose skills, energy and ideas
will make the difference”

As a company, our objective must be
to use our skills and technical expertise to
provide those who require energy with the
best possible choices, and ensure that their
needs can be mer chrough the efficient use
of energy in ways which do not damage our
common environment.

As a first step we are improving our
systems for measuring and reporting the
volumes of carbon dioxide emitted from our
operations, and developing targets thar will
be published and independently verified.
We are also serting up an experimental
internal emissions trading network, using
market forces to identify innovarive and
efficient means of reducing emissions.

Another contribution may come through
the development of photovoltaics and solar

power. BP’s technical strength in chis arca

the results demonstrate our commitment to
disciplined performance. We are delivering
those results ahead of schedule. BP's success
is no longer dependent on a favourable
external environment.

Qur investments are carefully targeted o
secure leadership positions offering sustained
profitability. We are aware of what is
necessary to operate in a complex and rapidly
changing world. We are responsive to the
rising expectations placed on incernational
companies. BP has the people whose skills,
energy and ideas will make the difference.

We plan prudendly and think radically.
1997 was a good year for.BY and our

journey continues.

John Browne
10 February 1998






That someone is Teck Min, a 16-year-old
Malaysian high school student who
lives in one of the most remote villages
in the world today.
That could be bad news for Teck Min
who is studying bard, hoping to win
a place at university. He could be
completely isolated, unable to contact
fellow students or even to work
effectively afier dark. Thanks to BP he
can do both. Solar cells developed by
us and installed in Teck Min's village,
and in similar communities throughott
Malaysia, mean he has access to
electric lighting and a wide-reaching
connunications network.
This initiative is just one example of
the way in which BP works around
the world 10 bring power to us all.

Now that’s Positive Energy.
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Strong operating cash
flow of $9.5 billion
(£5.8 billion} enabled
us to fund a growing
capital spending
programme while
carefully managing
the balance sheet

OPERATING

e

"For the third year running, in 1997 BP
delivered a record replacement cost profit
before exceprional items — an increase of 13%
on our 1996 performance. At $4.6 billion,
this represents a 17% return on average capital
employed — the highest of the oil majors.

Year on year, refining and marketing
profits rose by 41% to $1.5 billion
(£0.9 billion), thanks to improving demand
and the joint ventute in Europe with Mobil,
which delivered benefits ahead of targer.
Exploration and production profits rose 2%,
despite a 6% fall in the oil price. Chemicals
improved by 7%, reflecting a resilient 20%
return on operating capital in the face of the
weak Deutschmark.

Capital expenditure was $6.7 billion
{£4.1 billion), an underlying increase of 8%
over 1996, This reflects not only 2 wealth of
long-term development opportunities but
also a determination to pursue them, Capital
expenditure included $484 million for the
purchase of a 10% interest in A O Sidanco.

Strong operating cash flow of $9.5 billion
(£5.8 billion) enabled us to fund this
growing capital spending programme while
carefully managing the balance sheet. Net
debt was reduced from $7.4 billion at the
end of 1996 to $6.9 billion. The net debt to
net debt plus equity ratio fell from 25% at
the end of 1996 10 23% at the end of 1997,

Exploration and Production
Our upstream business had another
successful year in 1997, despite lower oil
prices. Replacement cost operating profit
before exceptional items rose by 2% to
$4.9 billion (£3.0 billion).

"This strong performance was driven by
increased production and continued focus on
cost management. Production grew by 2.1%

to 1.538 million barrels of oil equivalent
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a day (boe/d), while lifting costs were held
steady at $2.50 a barrel. Within this, gas
production increased 8.3% to 1,663 million
standard cubic feet a day.

New field starr-ups were Troika in the
Gulf of Mexico, Erskine in the North Sea
and Foinaven, west of Shetland. In addition,
second-phase development began at Cusiana/
Cupiagua in Colombia. Total output there
now exceeds 300,000 boe/d.

The Chirag-Azeri field in the Azerbaijani
waters of the Caspian Sea came on stream in
the fourth quarter of 1997,

We renewed and grew the business with
considerable success in 1997. Oil and gas
reserves were more than replaced for the sixth
year running, with 797 million barrels of oil
equivalent added to reserves in 1997.

Discoveries occurred in many parts of the
world. Of particular note were the finds in
Angola where the Dalia and Girassol fields
are being appraised. Together these deep-
water discoveries will form the basis of a
major new business opportunity for BD.
Meanwhile, in Alaska there were two
substantial finds — the Liberry field east
of Endicott and the Tarn discovery near
the Kuparuk field.

Tt was also 2 very successful year for long-
term renewal through new access agreements.

In Alaska and the Gulf of Mexico
we deepened our leadership positions by
acquiring substantial amounts of new acreage
at lease sales. We also signed a new agreement
for exploration and potential development
of a major acreage tract in Kazakhstan.

In December we achieved another
strategic objective by purchasing the
10% equity stake in A O Sidanco, a
major Russian oil company. Additionally
BP agreed to acquire 45% of Sidanco’s
conrrolling interest in Rusia, an Irkutsk-
based company with major oil and
gas discoveries in castern Siberia. This
strategic relationship forms the base on
which to construct a major joint exploration
and production business in Siberia.

This will include developing the large
Kovykinskoye gas condensate field that
forms part of Rusia’s holdings.




serations in Colombia.
3 prevent permanent

wironmental impact, we ‘ .
m %o ensure that areas Roadside poster sites in Guangzhou

eared for construction promote the BP brand of fuels and

e quickly replanted . .- ' , lubricants now on sale to an

natural gas production
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Technology underpins much of what we
do. This is evident in our efforts to manage
costs and increase production. In the Gulf
of Mexico, technology, in combination with
the sharing of best practices, has reduced
the time it takes to drill 10,000 feet (3,077
metres) by more than 50%. In effect, this
has offset the near-doubling of deep-water
drilling rig costs in recent years.

Innovative application of technology
is also playing a key role in recovering more
oil from our existing operations.

In Alaska, ‘designer wells’ have allowed
us to access pockets of oil that were
previously uneconomic. These wells
use state-of-the-art drilling and seismic
technology to connect one well bore 1o
multiple oil targets.

In 1998 we see production continuing
to grow as we bring on new fields in the
North Sea, Alaska, Venezuela and the
Atlantic off the Shetland Tsles. These fields,
combined with late 1997 starc-ups, should
be contributing significantly by the end
of 1998.

battling the

elements

Despite extreme weather conditions,
Alaska remains a vital province, with recent

discoveries and the introduction of ‘designer

wells’ to improve performance

“

Refining and Marketing

In addition to improving performance
considerably in 1997, our downstream oil
business made major strides in progressing
its strategic agenda. Replacement cost
operating profit before exceptional icems
rose to $1.5 billion (£0.9 billion), an increase
of 41% on 1996, Return on fixed assets, a
measure of relative competitive performance,
was 12% in 1997, placing downstream oil
in the first quartile versus benchmark
COMmpetitors.

Marketing volumes were 9% higher
than in 1996, reflecting the benefits of
the European joint venture with Mobil,
expansion into emerging markets, and a
concerted effort to improve retail facilities
in established markets.

More than 40 new flling stations were
constructed in Poland, China and Russia
during the year and growth should accelerate
in 1998.

The aviation business continued its
expansion with growth into China, Lebanon
and Central and Eastern Europe. Major
liquefied petroleum gas agreements were
signed in China and Turkey, and lubricants
joint ventures established in Vietnam and
Indonesia.

In established markets, more than 300
filling stations were upgraded to BP’s highest
standard, the majority of them with large
convenience stores. As a result of increasing
floor space and improved retailing skills,
merchandising turnover increased by 14%
at BPs company-owned and operated sites
during 1997.

Commercial marketing growth during
the year was underpinned by acquisitions
in the UK and Austria and investment in
technology to improve customer service.

Following our decision in 1996
announcing the closure of the Lima refinery,
Ohio, the refinery repositioning programme
remains on track.

During 1997, the Pernis fucls refinery
in the Netherlands was closed and BP and

snack attack

Sales have soared since BP Express shops

in the USA introduced Blimpie sandwich
franchises. The delicious freshly made snacks
are proving so popular that the 50 Blimpie
outlets opened during 1997 could double in
the next 12 months

We have decided to continue operating
the Lavéra fuels refinery in France for the
foreseeable future.

In addition to key portfolio decisions,
operating efficiency, another area of focus,
improved by 25 cents (15 pence) a barrel in
1997, representing 50% of the improvemenc
rargeted for the year 2000,

Progress on delivering the European
joint venture with Mobil exceeded
expectations. Partnerships have been
established in 25 countries and, during
1997, 2,060 filling stations were rebranded.
Capture of the savings is solidly on track
and a number of new growth options have
been identibied as B and Mobil begin 1o
take advantage of our leadership position
across Larope.

A new dl)\\'l]ﬁll'L"s”“ ()rg:lni.\';lti()n was
put in place during 997, focusing on
accountable business unies and decreased
hicrarchy. The organisation and supporting

processes wilt provide the platform for

Mobil announced the closure of the Llandarcy improved performance, sharing of good

lubricants refinery in sourh Wales in the

fourth quarter.

ideas. faster deciston-making and

;1ccclur;m'd :_‘,I'n\\'ill.
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Chemicals

Significant productivity improvements in our
chemicals business during 1997 were offset
by the strength of sterling and a weaker
Deutschmark. In spite of this, we produced

2 20% return on capital before tax and
reported an operating profic of $0.8 billion
{(£0.5 billion) which was $51 million up

on 1996.

This success resulted largely from careful
management of assets, strong emphasis on
developing and applying technology, and the
introduction of innovarive business practices.
The total volume of product manufacrured
rose 12% in 1997

Among major capacity increases, the
acrylonitrile plant at Green Lake, Texas,
became the world’s largest when a new
reactor boosted output by one-third. At
Grangemouth, Scotland, the continuing
expansion in ethylene production, begun
in 1997, will make the plant one of the
largest and most cost-effective in Europe.

A smaller project last year involved growth
of polystyrene and expandable polyseyrene
capacity at Wingles, France.

The disposal of units which no longer
fit BP’s core hydrocarbon-based businesses
is now in its final stages.

QOur commitment to fong-term growth
was underlined during 1997 by a wide range

of new projects. In China we continued

polystyrene power

Styrenics is a growing area of investment for
BP to meet global demand. A new styrenics
catalyst undergoes trials at the Wingles plant

in France

ANNILUAL REP

ORT AND ACCOU

feasibility studies on the $2.5 billion

(£1.5 billion) project for a world-scale
integrated ethylene cracker complex at
Jinshan with the Shanghai Pecrochemical

Company.

Elsewhere in Asia, BP has developed
plans to build a world-scale ethylene cracker
at Bojonegara, West Java, with its partners.
The cracker start-up will be timed to meet
developing demand.

In Malaysia, BP and Petronas unveiled
plans to invest joinely in an acetic acid plant
at Kertih which will use BP's advanced
Cativa technology. Production is due to start
by the end of 1999. With our partners we
gave approval for a major expansion at the
International Esters Company plant at
Ulsan, South Korea. We concluded a joint
venture agreement to build a polyethyiene
plant at Bataan, Philippines. We also
signed two memoranda of understanding
in Indonesia covering construction of
polybutenes and solvents plancs in
West Java,

In Europe, we agreed o buy Styrenix
Kunststoffe, the styrene plastics business
owned by German chemicals company Hiils,
part of the Veba group. BP’s largest chemicals
business acquisition for 15 years, it will make
us one of Europe’s biggest styrenics producers.
We are committed to growing our styrenics
business globally, particularly in Asia, from
a strong base in Europe, where we already
have styrenics planrs at Wingles, France,
and Baglan Bay, Wales.

We also announced plans for a world-
scale production plant for 1,4-butanediol,
based on the new technology developed
joinily with Lurgi Ol-Gas-Chemie GmbH.
The preferred plant is our Lima site in the
USA. Construction is planned to begin by
the end of 1998, with completion scheduled
for 2000.

New technologies announced or
progressed during the year included a new
route 1o produce ethyl acetate, a widely used
solvent, and the successful operation of a
demonstration unic which can produce
acrylonitrile by propane ammexidation ar

considerable savings over current methods.

NTS 1997
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Solar energy

BP’s solar business continued with its 16th
year of unbroken growth in turnover. Sales
reached a record $80 million (£50 million)
in 1997, up 33% on 1996.

Our commitment ¢o long-term growth
was confirmed with the announcement
in May of our aim to increase annual
turnover to $1 billion (£600 million)
by 2007.

Commercial highlights in 1997 included
major new contracts. A three-year deal with
the Philippines government will see the
installation of solar power at 400 remote

villages, benefiting more than a million people.

sunny side up

Solar panels are powering a number of our retail
outlets, such as the service station on the site
of the former Berlin wall. After evaluation, this

concept may be extended across the world

In Seprember we won a contract to
supply grid-connected sotar power art the
athletes’ village, next to the site for the
Olympic Games at Sydney, Australia,
in 2000. The 665-house village will be
one of the largest concentrations of
solar-powered homes linked to a grid
anywhere in the world.

The future of BP’s solar business is
underpinned by strong technology. We have
the highest-efficiency solar cells in volume
production roday and are expanding our
production capacity in Spain. We have
also recently opened a thin-film planc in
Fairfield, California.
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Health, Safety and the Environment
BP's health, safety and environment (HSE}
goals are simply stated — no accidents,

no harm to people and no damage to the
environment. Wherever we have control or-
influence we consult and co-operate with all
stakeholders, openly report our performance
and recognise those who contribute to
improving it.

Owerall, the safery performance of our
workforce (both employees and contractors)
measured in Jost-time injury {LTT) frequency
did not improve duting 1997. A significant
improvement was recorded for contractors
who work for us, and 39% of our reporting
units completed the year with no LTTs.

We had slightly fewer oil spills in 1997
than in 1996. Of the 277 spills in 1997, only
5% exceeded 15,000 litres, while over 50%
were berween 150 and 3,000 litres. During
the year we also began to measure the volume
of oil recovered from the environment after
a spill. In 1997 we recovered more than
70% of the total oil spilled.

This is the first year in which the joint
venture with Mobil in Europe has been
included in our HSE reporting. In crearing

this organisation, three smaller BP lubricants

double first

One of our latest class of crude oil tankers,
the British Harrier meets the highest technical
and environmental specifications. BPs first
purpose-built, managed and operated double-
hull, double-bottomed ship, it is servicing

refineries in Australia and New Zealand

refineries transferred to Mobil while we
gained two Mobil fuels refineries. This change
increased both hydrocarbon emissions to air
and discharges to water for our refining
'business, creating a new baseline for BP.

We have begun to make progress on
BP’s target to reduce hydrocarbon emissions
to air by 50% (165,000 tonnes) by the year
2001. Emissions are now down to 312,000
tonnes. We are moving towards our second
target of having verified environmental
management systems at all our sites thae
have a significant environmental impact.
Four sites gained independent verification
in 1997.

Global climate change is an issue on
which BP has taken action during 1997.

As a first priority we committed ourselves
to reduce our emissions of carbon dioxide.
The second priority was 1o understand their
level and sources. To do this we recalculated
our emissions for 1995 and 1996 using our
improved methodology. The figure for 1997
is 40 million tonnes. The next step will

be to set targets for reduction.

We are also developing a pilot emissions
trading system involving some of our key
operations. If this succeeds in achieving
emission reductions at the lowest practicable
cost, we will introduce it throughout BP.

Euller details of our HSE performance
are given in HSE Facts 1997

Community activities

Last April we published a new edition of

BP in the community. This described more
than 100 community investment and
partnership programmes supported by BP
worldwide. The brachure also signalled the
development of BP’s business policies and
the management processes required to ensure
that the policies are understood and
implemented throughous the company.

In addition, it announced our intention
to move towards a new, more comprehensive
and more searching account of our social
performance in future years. This process
moves forward wich the issue in April 1998
of the next edition of the publication, now

tenamed the BP? Social Report.

keeping in t
eeping in touch

A young visitor enjoys lunch at an exhibition
about the Coryton refinery, Essex, now operated
by BP as part of the joint venture with Mobil.
Openness and dialogue with local communities
are vital to mutual understanding and trust

The new report aims to provide a
representarive and balanced view of our
social performance. A range of case studies
illustrates what BP's business policies mean
in practice. It also features detailed case
studies describing our social impace and
performance in a small number of countries
more comprehensively, and gives information
on our social contribution through
community programmes.

Support for the community is an
integeal part of our business activities.

It takes many forms and often involves
partnerships with other organisacions,
building on differenc skills and knowledge
for murual benefit. For example, during 1997
we committed $2.3 million {£1.4 million}
over five years to help set up a business
advisory agency in Poland, in collaboration
with Groundwork Blackburn and the Polish
Environmental Partnership Foundation.

The agency is designed to help small and
medium-sized companies improve their
performance by adopting best environmental
management practice. The publication
includes examples of similar activities in
more than 40 countries.

The report discusses developments in
managing BP’s soctal petformance and the
continuing commitment to ensure thar our
overall impact on the communities affected

by our business operations is beneficial.













Every week throughout the summer,
thousands of sunflowers grown by
Provengal farmers are taken to aivfields
across the region for export. Their
destination? Restaurants, hotels and
homes around the world, where they
arvive fresh and fragrant, thanks to
a process most of us take for graited.
At BE we know just how tine-sensitive
the movement of perishable goods can be,
whether sunflowers, scallops or strawberries.
We know because we play an indirect,
but important, role in facilitating
international trade; in this case,
providing the low-sulphur gasoil that
powers farmers’ tractors, and the kerosine
which lifts cargo planes into the air.
The farmers of Provence are largely
unaware of BP’s contribution, which
probably means we are doing our job
well, achieving the maximum effect
with the minimum fuss and impact.

Now that'’s Positive Energy.
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Exceptional items of $101 million
{£62m) before tax refared mainly to the
costs of rerminating base oil manufacturing
operations at Llandarcy. These were partly
offset by the write-back of provisions
resulting from the decision to continue
operating the Lavéra refinery. Exceptional
charges of $805 millicn (£516m) before
tax in 1996 related mainly to the one-off
restructuring and implementation costs of
the European downstream joint venture
with Mobil.

Interest expense was further reduced,
from $641 million (£411m) in 1996 to
$486 million (£296m), as a result of debt
repayments and lower interest races. The
reported interest charge in 1996 included
a net special charge of $74 million (£48m}
caused by the early redemption of $1 billion
of bonds.

Corporate taxes charged in the year
increased to $1,915 million (£1,168m)
against $1,727 million (£1,107m) in 1996.
The rise reflecred higher raxable income
although there continued to be some
beneficial offser from the urilisation of past
tax fosses and the write-back of Advance
Corporation Tax. The effective tax rate on
replacement cost profit, before exceptional
items, was 30%, the same level as last year.
It is expected thar the effective cax rate wil
continue at or around this level during 1998.

Historical cost profic was $4,051 million
(£2,470m) after exceptional items and stock
holding losses of $520 million (£317m). This
compares with $3,981 million (£2,552m) in
1996, which included stock holding gains of
$627 million (£402m).

Capital expenditure and acquisitions
amounted to $6,672 million (£4,068m),
an underlying increase of 8% over 1996,
reflecting BP’s commitment o disciplined
profitable growth. This figure includes
$484 million for the purchase of a 10%
interest in A O Sidanco and $270 million
(£165m) in respect of the purchase of shares

for future employee share schemes.

Net cash fow for the year was
$403% million (£246m), $386 million
(£260m) below the underlying level of the

previous year. This is after adjusting for the
final payments during 1996 in respect of
the 1994 Alaskan tax secclement. Higher

operating cash flow due to lower working

capital requirements was more than offset by

higher capiral expenditure and acquisitions
and lower disposal proceeds.

The group’s finance debr is almost
entirely in US dollars. Net debr, that is
debt less cash and liquid resources, was
reduced by $413 million during 1997, and
net debr at the vear-end stood at $6.9 billion
(£4.2bn}. The ratio of net debt o net debt
plus equity was 23% compared with 25%
a year ago. We expect to keep net debt
within our target range of $7--8 billion.
Cash generation will be used to fund
increased capital expenditure and, when
appropriate, to make additional returns
to the shareholder.

Dividends

Total dividends announced for 1997 were
22 pence per share, against 19.5 pence in
1996, an increase of 13%.

Following the changes announced to the
UK corporate tax system in July, principally
the immediate withdrawal of the repayment
of the tax credit to UK tax-exempt
insticutions, and the abolition of the Foreign
Income Dividend regime from April 1999,
we announced that we would continue o
offer the gross scrip share dividend plan in its
current form until the governmenc’s further
intentions were clarified. The withdrawal
of the repayment of the tax credit made the
plan, which is based on the net dividend plus
the associated tax credir, attractive to a larger
number of shareholders. This resulted in a
substanially increased uptake of the plan
during 1997,

The UK government’s Pre-Budget
Report in November announced that it
intended ro abolish Advance Corporation
Tax with effect from April 1999. Its abolicion
would remove the economic reason for
continuing with the share dividend plan,
but the position will be reviewed once the
full derails are announced in the March
1998 Budger.

fast turn-round

Loading ocean-going tankers at BP's Hound

Point terminal, Scolland, is a precision vperation,
masterminded by a berth supervisor. Whatever
the weather, the huge vessels must be loaded
with crude oil and back at sea within 18 hours

Share purchases

Duting 1997, we announced that we
intended o ask shareholders at the annual
general meeting in April 1998 for approval
to buy back shares for canceflation. Subject
to this approval, the repurchases would be
instituted from time to time when the board
felt there was capacity to do so.

In the meancime, the company is buying
shares worth $500 miilion (£300m) in the
market to meet future obligations under
employee share schemes rather than issuing
new shares. This will reduce the dilutive
effect of previous arrangements. By the
end of 1997, 18.8 million shares had been
purchased at a cost of $270 million (£165m),
and we expect that the trustec will have
complered the remainder of the purchases
by the end of March 1398,

Internal financiat control
In accordance with the provisions of the
Cadbury Code of Best Pracrice, we set out
below a general description of BP’s internal
financial control. ’

The process for internal financial controi
has been designed to allow the board to
monitor the group’s overall financial position

and 1o help protect its asses. Its purposc

-




net debt progression
($/% billion - end year)

Son

Net dlabt - US doltars
Met debt — steriing equivalent

is to give reasonable assurance against
material financial misstatement or loss.

The direcrors are responsible for this process,
and appropriate authorities and guidelines
are in place.

The board approves the aggregate
financial framework and performance
targets within which the executive has
been delegated authority to operate and
formulaze the component financial
objectives for individual operating uniss,
Performance against these targets is
reported quarterly and variances analysed.
Financial forecasts are reviewed monthly
and include analyses of material sensitivities
and changes.

BP’s policy on business conduct,
which covers ethical behaviour, compliance
with legislation and sound accounting
practice, underpins our internal financial
control process. [t is reinforced by an
annual compliance certification process
throughout BIX

The Audit Committee reviews the
effectiveness of internal financial conerol
with management and with internai and
external auditors and reports on it to the
board.

The directors consider the system fulfifled

its purpose in 1997,
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capital expenditure and
acquisitions (& billion)

4

Expioration & PrMucﬁon
Refining & Marketing

Chemicais

Qther businesses and corporale

Financiat risk management
Flucruations in exchange rates can have
significant effects on BP’s operating resules.
Most are subsumed within our business
operating results through changing cost-
competitiveness, lags in marker adjustment
to movements in rates, and conversion
differences accounted on specific transactions.
For this reason, the total effect of exchange
rate flucruations is not identifiable separately
in the group’s reported results.

The underlying economic currency of
the group’s cash flows is mainly the US
dollar. Our foreign exchange management
policy is therefore to minimise economic
exposures from currency movements against
the US dollar. Accordingly, most of our
borrowings are in US dollars or are swapped
into dollars where this achieves a lower cost
of financing. Other significant non-dollar
exposures arc also managed using a range
of derivatives.

As well as managing the currency and
eaturity of debt, we manage interest costs
through the balance between floating-rate
and fixed-rate debt, again using derivarives.
We also trade derivatives in conjunction with
these risk management activities.

BP’s oil trading division uses financial

and commodity derivatives as part of the

——a

environmental expenditure
(£ million)

overall optimisation of the value of the
group’s equity oil production and as part of
the associated trading of crude oil, products
and related instruments.

In risk management and trading,
only well-understwod, conventional
derivatives instruments are used. These
include futures and options traded on
regulated exchanges, and ‘over-the-
counter’ swaps, options, swaptions and
forward contracts.

Where derivatives constitute a hedge,
they do not expose the group to market risk
because the change in cheir marker value is
offset by an equal and opposite change in
the market value of the asset, liability or
transaction being hedged. By contrast,
where derivatives are held for trading
purposes, changes in market value give
rise to gains and losses. These are recognised
in the current period.

All material derivatives activity, whether
for risk management or trading, is carried
out by specialist teams that have appropriate
skills, experience and supervision. These
teams are subject to close financial and
managemenc control, meeting gencrally
accepted indusery practice and reflecting
the principles of the Group of Thirty

Global Dertvacives Study recommendations.
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This concrol framework includes prescribed
trading limits that are reviewed regularly
by senior management, marking trading
exposures to market and reviewing open
positions to assess BPs exposure in
potentially adverse situatiens. Counter-
party credit validation, independent of the
dealers, is undertaken before contracrual
commitiment.

An independent control function
monitors compliance with BPs derivative
management policies. Further details of
BP’s use of derivatives appear in Note 27

on the Accounts, pages 42 and 43.

Insurance

The group generally restricts its purchase
of insurance to situations where this is
required for legal or coneractual reasons.
This is because external insurance is not
considered economic for BP. Losses will
therefore be borne as they arise, rather
than being spread over time through
insurance premia. The position is reviewed

each year.

Millennium IT risk

The Year 2000 issue, which stems from
compurer programs written using two digits
racher than four to define the applicable year,
could result in processing faults on the
change of century, producing a wide range
of consequences.

The company has conducted a risk-
based review of its computer systems and
compurer-controlled processes to identify
those which could be affected and developed
an implementation plan to test and
remediate the faults. We are replacing or
repairing the affected systems, in close
collaboration with system suppliers.

The approximate cost of this work is
estimated at $150 million and 21l business-
critical work is duc to be completed by the
end of 1998.

The company’s global operations are
also exposed, to an unquancifiable degrec,
1o the failure of third parties to deal with
their Year 2000 exposures; we will take all

practical steps to mitigate che effect.
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The Euro

BP is adapting its commercial and financial
processes so that its European operations can
do business in the Euro after it is introduced
in some countries on 1 January 1999. The
capability to conducrt business in national
currencics will be retained as long as
necessary. The costs associared with these
changes are estimated at $100 million.

We do, however, see the introduction of the

Euro primarily as a business opportunity.

North Sea tax review

In his Budget of July 1997 the UK
Chancellor announced a review of the North
Sea fiscal regime to ensure that an appropriate
share of North Sea profits is being taxed while
continuing to maintain a high level of oil
industry interest in the future development
of the UK’s oil and gas reserves.

In our submission to the review we
argued that the existing fiscal regime broadly
succeeds in both areas, The outcome is likely
to be announced in the March 1998 Budger.

Environmentat investment
Operating and capiral expenditure on
the preveation, control, abatement or
elimination of air, water and solid waste
pollution is often not incurred as a separately
identifiable transaction. Instead, ic forms part
of a larger transaction which includes, for
example, normal maintenance expenditure,
The figures for environmental operating and
capiral expenditures in the table are therefore
estimates, based on the definitions and
guidelines of the American Petroleumn Institute.

Capital expenditure on pollution
abatement was at much the same level as in
1996 and similar levels are expected in the
foreseeable future. [n addition to capital
expenditure, the table shows the charges eo
current profits to create provisions for future
environmental remediation. Expenditure
against such provisions is normally incurred
in subsequent periods and is not included
in environmental operating expenditure
reported for such periods.

Provisians for eavironmental remediation

are made when a clean-up is probable and
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the amount reasonably determinable.
Generally, their timing coincides with
commitment to a formal plan of action or,
if earlier, on divestment or on closure of
inactive sites.

The extent and cost of future remediacion
programmes ate inherently difficult o
eseimate, They depend on the scale of any
possible contamination, the timing and
extent of corrective actions, and also BP's
share of the liability. Although the cost of any
furure compliance could be significant, and
may be material to the results of operations
in the period in which it is recognised, we do
not expect that such costs will have a material
effect on BP’s financial position or liquidity.
We believe our provisions are sufficient for
known requirements; and we do not believe
shar our costs will differ significantly from
those of other companies engaged in similar
industries or that our competitive position
will be adversely affected as a resuls.

In addition, we make provisions over
the useful lives of our oil and gas producing
assets and related pipelines to meet the cost
of eventual decommissioning. The charge
for decommissioning made in 1997 is
shown in the table opposite and further
details of our environmental and
decommissioning provisions appear in

Note 26 on the Accounts on page 42,

stress-resistant

Pipe materials must be able to resist the
development of cracks through rough handling
or repeated stress. A technician at our

Grangemouth chemicais plant puts Rigidex
polyethylene piping through a flexural fatigue test




Polyethylene? You may call him
Donald or Dafly, or any one of a
thousand other names, as he bobs
away through the bubbles or sits
benignly by the soapdish.
Perhaps you sometimes wonder where
he comes from. Perbaps not. Either
way, the humble plastic duck has a
history just like the rest of us. He
actually started life as a complex
chemical compound, formed from
a range of raw ingredients, most of
which are derived from fossil fuels.
Which is where BP comes into the story.
We are the people who find, extract and
process these fossil fuels to a state in
which they can be used to create plastics
for use every day in homes, offices,
[factories, Inboratories and hospitals.

Now that’s Positive Energy.

- Bathtime
jyst wouldn’t be the same

/ithout

‘polyethylene







Accounting policies

Accounting standards -
These accounts are prepared in accordance with applicable UK
accounting standards.

Accounting convention

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention.
Historical cost accounts show the profits available to shareholders
and are the most appropriate basis for presentation of the

group’s balance sheet. Profit o loss determined under the historicat
cost convention includes stock holding gains or losses and, as a
consequence, does not necessarity reflect underlying trading results.

Replacement cost

The results of individuat businesses and geographical areas

are presented on a replacement cost basis. Replacement cost
operating results exclude stock holding gains or losses and reflect
the average cost of supplies incurred during the year, and thus
pravide insight into underlying trading results. Stock holding gains
or losses represent the difference between the replacement cost
of sales and the historical cost of sales calculated using the first-in
first-out method.

Stock valuation

Stocks are valued at cost to the group using the first-in first-out
method or at net realisable value, whichever is the lower. Stores are
stated at or below cost calculated mainly using the average method.

Group consolidation

The group financial staternents comprise a consolidation of the
accounts of the parent company and its subsidiary undertakings.
The financial statements incorporate the group proportion of

the profits or losses and net assets of associated undertakings.
Cartain of the group’s activities are conducted through joint veniures
and other similar arrangements and are included in the financial
statements in proportion to the group's share of their income,
expenses, assets and liabilities.

Foreign currencies
On consolidation, assets and liabilities of subsidiary undertakings
are transiated into sterling at closing rates of exchange. Income and
cash flow statements are translated at average rates ¢f exchange.
Exchange differences resutting from the retranslation of net
investments in subsidiary and associated undentakings at closing
rates, together with differences between income statements
translated at average rates and at closing rates, are dealt with in
reserves. Exchange gains and losses arising on leng-term foreign
currency borrowings used to finance the group’s foreign currency
investments are also dealt with in reserves,
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All other exchange gaing or losses on settlement or translation at
closing rates of exchange of monetary asseis and liabffities are
included in the determination of profit for the year.

Derivative financial instruments

The group is a party to derivative financial instruments (derivatives)
primarily to manage exposures to fuctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates, and to manage some of its
margin exposure from changes in oil prices.

All derivatives which are held for trading purposes and all il price
derivatives held for risk management purposes are marked to rQarket
and all gains and losses recognised in the income statement.

Interest rate swap agreements, swaptions and futures contracts
are used to manage interest rate sxposures. Amounts payable
or receivabie in respect of these derivatives are recognised as
adjustments to interest expense over the period of the contracts.

As part of exchange rate risk management, foreign currency
swap agreements and forward contracts are used to convert
non-US dallar borrowings into US dollars. Gains and tosses on
these derivatives are deferred and recognised on maturity cf the
underiying debt, together with the matching loss or gain on the
debt. Foreign currency forward contracts and options are used to
hedge significant non-US dollar firm commitments or anticipated
transactions. Gains and losses on these contracis and option
premia paid are alsc deferred and recognised in the income
statement or as adjustments to carrying ameunts, as appropriate,
when the hedged transaction ocours.

Exploration expenditure

Exploration expenditure is accounted for in accordance with the
successful efforts method. Exploration and appraisal drilling
expenditure is initially capitaiised as an intangible fixed asset, When
proved reserves of oil and gas are determined and development is
sanctionad, the relevant expenditure is transferred to tangible
production assets. All exploration expenditure determined as
unsuccessful is charged against income. Exploration licence
acquisition costs are amortised over the estimated period of
exploration. Geological and geophysical exploration costs are
charged against income as incurred.

Depreciation -

Oi and gas production assets are depreciated using a unit-of-
production methed based upon estimated proved reserves. Other
tangible and intangible assets are depreciated on the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives. *
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Decommissioning

Provision is made for the decommissioning of production facilitiss
in accordance with local conditions and reguirements on the basis
of costs estimated as at the balance sheet date. The provision

is allocatad over accounting pericds using & unit-of-production
method based on estimated proved reserves.

Petroleum revenue tax
The charge for petroleum revenue tax is calculated using a unit-of-
production method.

Changes in unit-of-praduction factors

Changes in factors which affect unit-of-production calculations are
dealt with prospectively, not by immediate adjustment of pricr years’
amounts,

Environmental liabilities

Environmental expenditures that relate to current or future revenues

are expensead or capitalised as appropriate. Expenditures that

relate to an existing condition caused by past operations and that

do not contribute to current or future earnings are expensed.
Liakilities for environmental costs are recognised when

environmental assessments or clean-ups are probable and the

associated costs can be reasonably estimated. Generally, the

timing of these provisions coincides with the commitment to

a formal plan of action or, if earlier, on divestment or on closure

of inactive sites.

Leases

Asgets held under leases which result in group companies receiving
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership (finance leases) are
capitalised as tangible fixed assets at the estimated present value
of underlying lease payments. The corresponding finance lease
obiigation is included with borrowings. Rentals under operating
ieases are charged against income as incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of purchase consideration over the fair valus of
net assets acquired. It is capitalised and amortised over its estimated
useful economic life, limited to a maximum period of twenty yoars.

Research
Expenditure on rasearch is written off in the year in which it is incurred.

Interest

Interest is capitalised gross during the period of construction where
it refates either to the financing of major projects with long periods
of development or to dedicated financing of other projects. All other
interest is charged against income.

Pensions and other post-retirement henefits

. The cost of providing pensions and other post-retirement benefits

is charged to income on a systematic basis, with pension surpluses
and deficits amortised over the expected average remaining service
lives of current employees. The difference between the amounts
charged to income and the contributions made to pension plans

is included within other provisions or debtors as appropriate.

The amounts accrued for other post-retirement benefits and
unfunded pension liakilities are included within other provisions.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is calculated, using the liability method, in respect
of iming differences arising primarily from the difference between the
accounting and tax treatments of both depreciation and petroleum

revenue tax. Provision is made or recovery anticipated where timing
differences are expected 10 reverse in the foreseeable future.,

Comparative figures
Certain previous years’ figures have been restated to conform with
the 1997 presentation.
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Group income statement

£ million
For the year ended 31 December Note 4997 1996
Turnover 1 43,460 44,731
Replacement cost of sales 35177 36,325
Production taxes 2 617 823
Gross profit 7,666 7,583
Distribution and administration expenses 3 3,652 3,704
Exploration expense 199 203
3,815 3,678
Other income 4 506 516
Replacement cost operating profit 5 4,321 4,192
Loss on sale or termination of cperations ] (105} {178)
Refinery network rationalisation B 43 -
European refining and marketing joint venture implementation 8 - (341)
Replacement cost profit before interest and tax 4,259 3,676
Stock holding gains (losses) 5 (317) 402
Historical cost profit before interest and tax 3,942 4,078
Interest expense 7 296 411
Profit before taxation 3,646 3,667
Taxation 8 1,168 1,107
Profit after taxation 2,478 2,560
Minority shareholders’ interest 8 8
Profit for the year 2,470 2,652
Distribution to shareholders e 1,262 1,102
Retained profit for the year 1,208 1,450
Earnings per ordinary share . ) 10 43.3p 45.5p
Replacement cost results
Historical cost profit for the year 2,470 2,552
Stock holding (gains) losses 317 (402)
Replacement cost profit for the year 2,787 2,150
Exceptional items, net of tax and minority shareholders’ interest 6 35 470
Replacement cost profit before exceptional items 2,822 2,620
Earnings per ordinary share
On%replac_g_rger)t cost pn_’ofit before exceptional items_s - 10 ~ 49.5p ] 48.7p
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Balance sheets
£ million
Group Parent
At 31 December Note 1997 1906 1997 1696
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 18 1,130 959 - -
Tangible assets 19 19,639 18,805 - -
Investments 20 2,414 2,056 3,261 2,411
23,183 21,820 3,261 2,411
Current assets
Stocks 21 2,581 3,009 - -
Debtors —amounts falling due:
Within cne year 22 5,460 6,276 4,672 5114
After more than one year 22 1,487 1,314 11 4
Investments 23 53 58 - -
Cash at bank and in hand 113 95 1 2
9,694 10,752 4,684 5,120
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Finance debt 24 1,137 1,058 - -
Other creditors 25 8,980 9,659 762 57
Net current (liabilities) assets (423) 135 3,922 4,363
Total assets less current liabilities 22,760 21,955 7,183 6,774
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year
Finance debt 24 3,211 3,474 - -
Other crediters 25 1,362 1,830 49 83
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation 8 390 405 - -
Cther provisions 26 3,629 3,642 40 40
Net assets 14,168 12,904 7,094 6,651
Minority shareholders’ interest 56 109 - -
BP shareholders’ interest  4m2 12795 7,004 6851
Represented by
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 28 1,453 1,425 1,453 1,425
Share premium account 29 2,078 2,012 2,078 2,012
Capital redemption reserve 197 197 197 197
Reserves 30 10,384 9,161 3,366 3,017
31 Clam2 12795 7,094 ..5:851

Peter Sutherland, Director

John Browne, Director

10 February 1998
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Group cash flow statement

2 rnillriicﬂ
For the year ended 31 December Note 1997 1996
Net cash inflow from operating activities ) _ ' 32 7 5773 4,992
Servicing of finance and returns on investments
Interest received 95 91
Interest paid (320) (477,
Dividends received ‘ ) _ ] 7 B _ 12 _ 15
Net cash outflow from servicing of finance and returns on investments (213) (3r1)
Taxation
UK corporation tax (288) (278)
Overseas tax ) B _ )  (54) ®71)
Tax paid _ ) 7 _  (829) - (949)
Capital expenditure
Payments for fixed assets (3,505) (3,114)
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets . _ 7 ) i 7 - 89 319
Net cash outflow for capital _expenditurg ' 7 , 7 (3,416) (2,795)
Acquisitions and disposals
Investments in associated undertakings {491) {126)
Proceeds from the sale of businesses ) ) 17 _ 65 ) 283
Net cash {outflow} inflow for acquisitions and disposals . B (429 157
Equity dividends paid N 7  (843) 7 (720)
Net cash inflow i 246 314
Financing 32 228 557
Management of liquid resources 32 ig] {45)
Increase (decrease} in cash a2 25 (198}

- . 1.
Statement of total recognised gains and losses
) ) £ million_

For the year ended 31 December o ] L . A 1998
Profit for the year 2,470 2,552
Currency translation differences _ _ ] (538) 818)

Total recognised gains and losses _ - 1982 - 1.734
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1 Turnover £ million
1997 1986
Sales and operating revenue 56,626 59,394
Customs duties and sales faxes 13,166 14,663
Turnover 43,460 44,731
Sales Sales to Sales Sales to
Total between third Total between third
Turnover? sales businesses parties sales husinesses parties
By business

Exploration and Production 7,909 2,607 5,302 8,577 2,952 5,628
Refining and Marketing® 35,728 578 35,150 36,426 710 35,718
Chemicals 3,123 173 2,950 3,464 155 3,309
Other businesses and corporate 58 - 58 81 - a1
46,818 3,358 43,460 48,548 3,817 44,731
Sales Salesto Sales Sales to
Total between third Total between third
sales areas paries sales areas parties

By geographical area
UKbe 21,218 4,420 16,798 22,837 4,483 18,354
Rest of Europe® 12,552 1,895 10,657 11,357 1,398 §,958
USA 9,945 146 9,799 11,003 253 10,750
Rest of Werld 7,324 1,118 6,206 6,871 1,203 5,668
51,039 7,579 43,460 52,068 7,337 44731

2 Turnover to third parties is stated by origin which is not materially different from turnover by destination.
Transfers between group companies are made at markst prices taking into account the volumes involved.

b 1997 turnover includes the BP share of the BP/Mobil Eurcpean joint venture.

¢ UK area includes the UK-based international activities of 8P Ol

2 Production taxes _Emiltion
1997 1996

UK petroleum revenue tax 176 289
Overseas production taxes o 441 524
617 823

3 Distribution and administration expenses £ million
1997 1986

Distributicn 3,521 3,680
Administration ) _ 131 124
3,652 3,704

4  Qther income L £ million
1997 1996

Share of profits of associated undertakings 293 283
Income from other fixed agset investments 50 47
Cther interest and miscellanecus income o 163 L _18@_
506 516

Income from listed investments_i_nc_luded ab(_)ve 1 2




D -

5 Analysis of replacement cost profit

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

6 Exceptional items

Exceptional items comprise loss on sale or termination of operations
and refining and marketing rationalisation costs, as follows:

£ million
1997 1996
Loss on sale or termination of operations (105) {175)
Refinary network rationalisation 43 -
Eurgpean refining and marketing
joint venture implementation - (341)
Exceptional items (62) (516)
Taxation credit (charge):
Sale or termination of operations 12 (28)
Refinery network rationalisation 15 -
European refining and marketing
joint venture implementation - 70
Exceptiona! items, net of tax ) (35} (474
Minority shareholders’ interest (MSI) - 4
Exceptional iterns, net of tax and MSI (35} {470)

7 Interest expense

£ miilion
1997 1996
Replacement Replacement Replacement Replacerment
cost cost profit cost cost profit
cperating Exceptional  before interest operating Exceptional  before interest
Profit . profit? itamns? and tax profit? items® and tax
By business '
Exploration and Production 2,960 {15) 2945 3,063 (37) 3,026
Refining and Marketing 910 (24 886 679 (355) 324
Chemicals 484 {9) 475 476 16 492
Other businesses and corporate (33) (14) {47} (26) (140) (166)
4,321 62) 4,259 4,182 (516) 3,676
By geographical area
UK® 1,604 {95) 1,509 1,601 {194 1,407
Rest of Europe 720 49 769 521 (256) 265
USA 1,235 (22} 1,213 1,329 6 1,335
Rest of World 762 6 768 741 {72) 669
4,321 {62) 4,259 4,192 (518) 3,676
a Replacement cost operating profit is before stock holding gains and Stock holding gains {losses) 1997 1996
losses and interest expense, which is attributable to the corporate By business
function. Transfers between group companies are made at market Exploration and Production 10 (12)
prices taking into account the voiumes invoived. Refining and Marketing (316) 409
b Exceptional items comprise loss on sale or termination of operations Chemicals {(11) 5
of €105 millien (£175 miliion) and write-back of certain 1995 refinery (317) 402
network rationalisation costs of £43 million {1986 ~ European refining B hical
and marketing joint venture implementation costs of £341 million). Uigeograp ical area (53) a7
¢ UK area includes the UK-based international activities of BP Oil. Rest of Europe (74) 128
USA (131) 172
Rest of World (59} 65
- e A

Sale or termination of operations The major element of the loss on
sale or termination of operations comprises the costs of terminating
base oil manufacturing operations at Llandarcy in the UK,

Additional information on sale or termination of operations is given in
Note 17 - Disposals.

Refinery network rationalisation The credit for refinery network
rationalisation relates to the release ¢f provisions for environmental and
severance costs charged in 1295 in respect of the anticipated sale or
closure of the Lavéra refinery in France. This release reflects the
decision fo continue operating the refinery.

European refining and marketing joint venture implementation
The one-off costs asscciated with the setting up of the European
refining and marketing joint venture with Mobil were recognised in 1996.
Taxation In accordance with the group’s policy for accounting for
deferred tax, only partial relief has been recognised in respect of the
joint venture implementation costs.

£ million

) 1997 1986

Bank loans and overdrafts 41 49
Other loans 253 348
Finance leases 58 52
352 445

Capitalised 56 38
Charged against profit 296 411

Interest expense for 1296 included net charges of £48 million relating to early redemption of debt.,
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8 Taxation £ million
1997 1996
United Kingdom corporation tax:
Current at 31.5% (33%) 785 866
Overseas tax relief (474) (400)
3 466
Deferred at 31.5% (33%) 124 6)
435 460
Advance corporation tax {60} {120)
375 340
Overseas:
Current 758 637
Deferred {30) 46
Associated undertakings 65 84
793 767
Taxation charge for the year 1,168 1,107
Included in the charge for the year is a credit of £27 million (£42 miltion) relating to exceptional items.
Provisions for deferred taxation £ million

Provisions Gross potential liability
Analysis of movements during the year: 1997 1996 1997 1996
At 1 January 405 376 1,813 1,607
Exchange adjustments {11} 15) (56} 97}
Charge for the year 94 40 353 299
Deletions/transfers (98) 4 {98) 4
At 31 December 390 405 2,012 1,813
of which — United Kingdom 210 184 651 574
- QOverseas 180 221 1,361 1,239
Analysis of provision:
Depreciation 1,163 1,223 3,669 3,413
Petroleum revenue tax {287} (353) (287} (363)
Other timing differences ) (1086) (183) (944) {859)
Advance corporation tax (380) (282) {426) (388)
390 405 2,012 1,813

If provision for deferred taxation had been made on the basis of the gross potential liability the taxation charge for the year would have been

increased as follows:

£ million

1997 1986

United Kingdom 51 116
Overseas 208 143
259 250

Deferred taxation is not generally prdvided in respect of kabilities which may arise on the distribution of accumulated reserves of overseas subsidiary

and asscciated undertakings.

%

Reconciliation of the UK statutory tax rate to the effective tax rate of the group: 1997 1996
UK statutory tax rate 31 33
Increase {decrease) resulting from:
Current year timing differences not provided {including pricr year loss utilisation) (8) i)}
Overseas taxes at higher rates 3 3
Advance corporation tax M) )]
Other 5 . 6
30 30

Effective tax rate on replacement cost profit before exceptional items
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9 Distribution to shareholders _ ] Pence per share £ million
1997 1596 1997 1996
Praference dividends (non-equity} 1 1
Ordinary dividends: First quarterly 5.25 4.25 299 239
Second quarterly 5.50 5.00 315 281
Third quarterly 5.50 5.00 316 283
Fourth quarterly T 5.75 5.25 331 298
22.00 19.50 1,262 1,102

10 Earnings pet ordinary share

Pence per share

The calcwation of eamnings per ordinary share is based on the prefit . . 1997 1995
for the year less preterence dividends, related to the weighted average Profit for the year 43.3 45.5
of 5,702 million (5,613 million) ordinary shares in issug during the year. Stock hoiding {gains) losses B 5.6 (7.2)
In addition to earnings per share based on the historical cost. profit for Replacement cost profit for the year 48.9 38,3
the yegr, a fgrther n.ﬂeasur.e. basec_i gn rep!gcement cost.proﬂt before Exceptional tems, net of tax 0.6 8.4
exceptional items, is provided as it is considered that this measure -
gives an indication of underiying performance. Replacement cost profit before
A reconciliation of the two earnings per share measures is as follows: excepft!_(_)n_gi_ terms - 4?_5_ o 467
11 Hire charges and expenditure on research £ million
1997 199£5
Hire charges under operating leases:
Tanker charters 232 248
Plant and machinery ‘ 139 164
Land and buildings _ 114 135
485 547
Expenditure on research _ ) 1 4] i 127
12 Auditors’ remuneration £ million
1997 1996
UK Total UK Total
Audit fees — Emst & Young
Group audit 2.4 5.4 2.6 5.4
I:QE:aI statutory audit and quarteriy review B 0.4 2j 0.4 2.7
- 7 28 8.0 ] 3.0 8.1
Group audit fees include £0.5 million (£0.5 millicn) in respect of the parent corhpany.
Fees for other services — Ernst & Young
Saies of businesses 0.9 09 1.0 1.5
Consultangy, tax and other advisory services ) 21 5.8 2.4 6.3
3.0 6.7 3.4 7.8
Fees to other major firms of accountants for non-audit services emounted to £59 million (£32 milien). The higher fees reflact the outsourcing of
European downstream accounting services.
13 Depreciation and amounts provided £ million
Included in the incorme statement under the following headings: 1997 1996
Depreciation
Replacement cost of sales 1,520 1,696
Distribution 257 3086
Adrministration 13 15
Exceptional iters 7 26 3
) 1,816 2,020
Depreciation of capitaiised leased assets included above 40

57
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14 Group balance sheet analysis 7 £ miflion
' Capital expenditure and acquisitions Operating capital employed
o B 1997 1996 1997 ] 1996
By business
Exploration and Production 2,748 2,415 13,742 12,187
Refining and Marketing . 774 761 4,668 5,137
Chemicals ’ 272 239 2,377 2,221
Other businesses and corporate 274 27 {639) 712)
4,068 3,442 20,148 18,833
By geographical area
UK2 1,353 1,321 7,076 8,559
Rest of Europe 518 378 1,988 2,144
USA 912 822 5,454 5,127
Rest of World ) 1,285 ) 921 B 5,630 5,003
) 4,068 3,442 20,148 18,833
? UK area includes the UK-based international activities of BP Qil, Operating capital employed 20,148 18,833
Liabilities for current and
deferred taxation . {1,632) (1,397)
Capital employed 18,516 17,436
Financed by:
Finance debt 4,348 4,632
Minority shareholders’ interest 56 109
B8P shareholders’ interest 14,112 12,795
18,516 17,438

15 Capital commitments

Authorised future capital expenditure by group companies for which contracts had been placed at 31 December amounted to £1,418 million
(£1,540 million).

16 Acquisitions

In December 1997 the group acquired & 10% interest in A O Sidanco, a Russian integrated cil company, for £292 milion. This amount is shown as
the acquisition of an associated undertaking within fixed asset investments, Also in 1997 the group acquired an additional 7.4% of the share capital
of BP France for a cash consideration of £56 million.

There were no acquisitions in 1996.

17 Disposals

Disposals in 1997 included the sale of oil marketing assets in Thailand The disposals comprise the following:
and advanced materials and phenolic resin businesses in the UK. £ million
The principal disposals in 1996 were the sale of the Carborundum 1997 1996
businesses; the BP America office building in Cleveland, Chio;
the group's interest in the undeveloped Ross figid and the floating Intangible assets 13 43
production and storage vessel Seillean. Tangible assets 148 530
Total proceeds received for disposals represent the following Fixed assets — investments 53 40
amounts shown in the cash flow staterment: Working capital 105 232
‘ £million  Other ] R LL:) I ).
1997 1996 301 768
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 89 gig lossonsaleor
Proceeds from the saie of businesses 65 og3  lermination of operations (108 079
oo T 154 g0z Total consideration 196 593
.- Deferred consideration (42) 24
Cash transferred on sale - (15)

Net cash inflow 154 602
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18 Intangible assets £ million

Exptoraticn Other

expenditure Goodwill intangibles Total
Cost
At 1 January 1997 1,322 76 144 1,542
Exchange adjustiments . - 19 1 (12) g
Additions : 429 4 7 440
Transfers (195) - 11 (184)
Deleticns (187 (2 2 {191)
At 31 December 1997 1,388 79 148 1,615
Depreciation
At 1 January 1997 456 44 83 583
Exchange adjustments (1) - 11) 12)
Charge for the year 68 5 12 85
Transfers - - 7 7
Deletions (176} 2) - (178)
At 31 December 1997 347 47 91 485
Net book amount
At 31 December 1997 1,041 32 57 1,130
At 31 December 1996 e - 86 .. %2 e 899

19 Tangible assets — property, plant and equipment

£ miltion
Exploration Refiring Other of which:
and and businesses Assets under
Production Marketing Chemicals  and corporate Total construction
Cost
At 1 January 1997 27,264 9,415 2,888 287 34,854 2,360
Exchange adjustments 101 (758) {16) 21 (652) 1
Additions 1,948 726 229 28 2,931 1,732
Transfers 219 (11 (30 - 178 {1,499}
Deletions (25} 271) (77} {66) (439) (46)
At 31 December 1997 29,507 8,101 2,994 270 41,872 2,548
Depreciation
At 1 January 1897 14,397 4,914 1,590 148 21,049
Exchange adjustments 81 (359) (29) 10 317
Charge for the year 1,263 395 o8 13 1,799
Transfers - (7) - - {7)
Deletions (@3} {(183) (58) {27) (291)
At 31 Becember 1997 15,728 4,760 1,601 144 22,233
Net book amount
At 31 December 1297 13,779 4,341 1,393 126 19,639 2,548
At 31 December 1996 12,867 4,601 1,298 139 18,805 2,360
Principal rates of depreciation a 2-25% 3-12% 3-26%
& Mainly unit-of-production
Assets held under finance leases, capitalised interest and fand at net book amount included above:
£ million
Leased assets Capitalised interest
Cost Depreciation Net Cost Depreciation Net
At 31 December 1997 1,154 560 594 1,534 248 586
At 31 December 1996 1,173 543 630 1,478 ) 895 N 583
Fraeheld land Leasehold land
Qver 50 years ungxpired N Other
At 31 December 1997 557 39 29

A3 December 1996 _ 580 29 32
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20 Fixed assets — Investments

£ million
. . _ . . ) —_— .  _ *million
Associated undertakings Loans Own shares? Other® Total
"% toans Ownshares _ = v
Share of
retained )
Group Shares Loans profit
Cost
At 1 January 1697 896 . ° 453 624 32 . g 62 2,076
Exchange adjustrments B5) 5 (107) ] - (5) {174)
Additions 112 14 {B4) 18 183 5 268
Acguisitions 309 - - - - - 309
Transfers 6 30 - - {30) 6

2,432

Deletions (18) (25) 2 (6) - 2) 53}
At 31 December 1997 1,240 477 451 30
. ue — mTee

Amounts provided

At 1 January 1997 19 - - - - 1 20
Exchange adjustments @} - - - - - )]
Provided in the vear - - - _ - - -

At 31 December 1997 17 - - - - 1 18

Net book amount

At 31 December 1997 1,223 477 451 42 192 29 2,414
At 31 December 1996 877 453 624 32 9 61 2,056

£ million
Subsidiary

undertakings® Associated undertakings®  Own shares? Total
Parent Shares Shares Loans
Cost
At 1 January 1997 2,404 2 1 9 2,416
Additions 667 - - 183 350

Deletions o] - - - {1}
At 31 December 1997 3,070 2 1 192 3,265
- 3070 - v e 90

Amounts provided

At 1 January 1997 4 - 1 - 5
Provided in the year {1) - - - )
At 31 December 1997 3 - 1 - 4
- 8 _ = _°
Net book amount

At 31 December 1997 3,067 2 - 192 3,261

At 31 December 1998 2,400 2 - 9 2,411

2wn shares are hald in Employee Sharg Ownership Plans (ESOPs) to meet the future requirements of the Employee Share Schemes (see Note 34)
nd prior to award under the Long Term Performance Pian {see Note 35). At 31 December 1997 the ESOPs held 18,790,000 shares for the
‘mployee Share Schemes and 3,274,000 shares for the Long Term Performance Plan. The market value of these shares at 31 December 1997
vas £176 million,

ther investments are unlisted.

he investments fn subsidiary and assoviated undertakingsrare almost entirely unlisted.

1 Stocks £ million
1997 1986
___Mﬁ__ﬁ_k_i_%_____ﬁ_l_%_‘
atroleum 2,003 2,407
“emicals 253 272
‘her 74 64
2,330 2,743

ares 21 2B
2,581 3,009

— - -

‘placement cost 2,621 3.039
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22 Debtors - ] ) £ mitlion

Group Parent

1997 1996 1997 iggi

Within 1 year  After 1 year  Within 1 year  After 1year  Within 1 year After 1 year Within 1 year  After 1 year

Trade 4,044 - 4,648 - - - - -

Group undertakings - - - - 4,658 - 5,092 -

Associated undertakings 71 68 pd - - - -
Prepayments and

accrued income 411 105 483 20 - - - -

Taxation recoverable 30 146 33 191 7 - 8 -

Pension prepayment - 1,113 - 930 - - - -

Other 904 121 744 101 7 11 14 4

5,460 1,487 6,276 1,314 4,672 11 5,1 1_4 ______ 4

23  Current assets — investments £ million

1997 1996

Listed — UK 30 32

- Foreign 19 12

49 44

Uniisted 4 14

53 58

Stock exchange value of listed investments 49 48

24  Finance debt ) £ million

1997 1966

Within 1 year  After 1 year Within 1 year  After 1 year

Bank loang and overdrafts 134 69 266 29

Other loans 954 2,106 754 2,461

Total borrowings 1,088 2,175 1,020 2,490

Obligations under finance leases 49 1,036 38 984

1,137 3,211 1,058 3,474

Whare the liability for any borrowing is swapped into another currency the borrowing is accounted in the swap currency and not in the criginal
currency of denomination. The total figures for borrowings in the table above include a net increase of £68 million {reduction of £18 million) in the

carrying value of debt through the offset of swaps.

. - £ million
o 1997 1996

i Bank loans Bank loans

Analysis of borrowings and and
by year of repayment ovefdraﬁs ) Other loans Total overdrafts Other foans Total
Due after 5 vyears 11 885 896 11 1,185 1,188
Due within 5 years 6 320 326 5 249 254
4 years 21 254 275 4 235 239
3years 28 248 276 5 451 456
_ 2years - 3 399 402 4 341 345
69 2,106 2,175 29 2,461 2,490
1 year o 134 954 1,088 266 754 1,020
e o a0s - 3,060 3,263 295 3,218 3,510

Amounts included above repayabie by instalments part of which falls due after five years from 31 Dacember are as follows:

Alfter 5 years 11 7
Within 5 years o 16 14
27 21

Interest rates on borrowings repayable wholly or partly more than five years from 31 December 1997 range from 3% to 18% with a weighted average

of 9%. The weighted average interest rate on finance dsbt is 7%.

At 31 Decernber 1997 the group had substantial amounts of undrawn borrowing facilties available, inciuding £1,205 million {£1,183 million) which
were covered by formal commitments. These committed facilities are mainly with a number of international banks and expire in 2001. Commitment
fees are paid on the unused portion of the fines of credit. Borrowings under the facilities will be at prevailing money market rates. Certain of these

faclilities support the group’s commercial paper programme.
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24 Finance debt continued o o 1997 1906
Fixed rate debt ) Floating rate debt

Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average time average

interest for which interest
. rate rate is fixed Amount rate Amount Total Total
Analysis of horrowings by currency T Y% Years £ million Yo £ million £ million £ millicn
Sterling - - - 7 33 33 137
US dollars 9 i2 1,980 6 1,089 3,069 3,144
French francs - - - - - - 28
South African rands - - - 19 38 38 51
Other currencies 8 4 16 7 107 123 1650
Total loans 1,996 1,267 3,263 3,510

The group aims for a balance between floating and fixed interest rates. During 1997 the upper limit for the proportion ¢f floating rate debt was set at
5% of total debt, Interest rates on floating rate debt denominated in LS doliars are linked principally to LIBOR, with those on debt in cther currencies
based on the equivalent in local markets. The group monitors interest rate risk using a process of sensitivity analysis. Assuming no changes to the
borrowings and hedges described above, it is estimated that a change of 1% in the general level of interest rates on 1 January 1998 would change
1998 prefit before tax by approximately £20 million.

] £ million

1997 1998

Carrying Carrying

Fair values and carrying amounts of horrowings Fair value amount Fair value amount
Short-term korrowings 642 642 713 713
Long-term borrowings _ 2,657 2,553 2,934 2,815
Total horrowings . 3,299 3,195 3.647 3,528

The fair value and carrying amounts of borrowings shown above exclude the effects of currency swaps which are included for presentation in the
batance sheet. The carrying amounts of the group's short-tarm borrowings under its commercial paper programme and bank loans and overdrafts
approximate their fair value. The fair value of the group’s long-term debt {including the current maturities of long-term debt) is estimated using quoted
prices or, where such prices are not available, discounted cash flow analyses, based on the group’s current incremental borrowing rates for similar
types of borrowing arrangements and maturities,

£ million

Obtigations under finance leases 1997 1996
Minimum future iease payments payable within: 1 year 64 58
2tc 5 years 420 426

Thersafter ) ) 2,387 2,578

2,871 3.082

Less finance charges 1,786 2,040
Net obligations 1,085 1022
25 Other creditors ) ) 7 B £ million
Group Parent

1997 1996 1987 1996

) Within 1 year  After 1 year Within 1 year  After 1 year Within 1 year  After 1 year Within 1 year  After 1 year

Trade 3,712 - 4,512 - - - - -
Group undertakings - - - - - 49 13 83
Associated undertakings 148 1 120 1 - - - -
Production taxes 217 929 350 1,070 - - - -
Taxation on profits 1,418 - 1,216 - 89 - 141 -
Social security 24 - 32 - 6 - 6 -
Accruals and deferred income 1,344 218 1,179 261 6 - - 6 -
Dividends ’ 647 - 581 - 647 - 581 -
Other 1,470 214 1,560 198 14 ) - 0 -

8,980 1,362 9,559 1,530 762 49 757 83
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26 Other provisions

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

£ million

Unfunded  Gther post-

pension retirernent
Decommissioning Environmental plans benefits Other Total
At 1 January 1997 1,485 634 903 499 129 3,642
Exchange adiustments 14 1 (104 9 5 75)
Charged to income 66 (31) 140 24 30 229
Utilised/deleted o] (39) (74) (25) 24 (167)
At 31 December 1997 1,560 565 865 499 140 3,629

Other includes parent company £40 million (£40 rrifiion).

27 Derivative financial instruments

In the normal course of business the group is a party to derivative
financial instruments (derivatives) with off-balance shest risk,

primarily to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates, and some maovemeants in ail prices.
The underlying economic currency of the group’s cash flows is mainly
US dollars. Accordingly, most of our borrowings are in US dellars or
swapped into dollars where this achieves a lower cost of financing.
Significant non-dollar cash flow exposures are hedged. Gains and losses
arising on these hedges are deferred and recognised in the income
statement or as adiustments to carrying amounts, as apprepriate, only
when the hedged ftem occurs. We also manage the balance betwesn
floating rate and fixed rate debt. In addition, we trade derivatives in
conjuncticn with these risk management activities.

These derivatives involve, to varying degrees, credit and market risk.
With regard to credit risk, the group may be exposed to loss in the event
of nen-perfermance by a counterparty. The group controls credit risk by
entering inta derivative contracts only with highly credit rated
counterparties and through credit approvals, lirits and monitoring
procedures and does not usually require collateral or other security,

The group has not experienced material non-performance by any
counterparty.

Market risk is the possibility that a change in interest rates, currency
exchange rates or oil prices will cause the value of & financial instrument
to decrease or its obligations to become more costly {o settle. When
clerivatives are used for the purpose of risk management they dc not
expose the group to market risk because gains and losses on the
derivatives offset losses and gains on the asset, liabilty or transaction
being hedged. When derivatives are traded, the exposure of the group
to market risk is limited to changes in their fair (market} values.

The measurement of market risk in trading activities is discussed
further below.

The table shows the ‘fair valug' of the asset or liability created
by derivatives. This represents the market value at the balance sheet
date. Credit exposure at 31 December is represented by the column
‘fair value asset!

The table also shows the ‘net carrying amount’ of the asset or
liability created by derivatives. This amount represents the net book
value, i.e. market value when acqguired or later marked to market.

£ million

1997 1996

Falr Fair  Net carrying Fair Fair  Net carrying

value value amount value valug arnount

asset {liability) asset (liability) asset (liability) asset (liability)
Risk management — interest rate contracts 33 (144) (32) 34 (129) (87}
- foreign exchange contracts 80 (106) 75 339 (59 100

— oil price contracts 12 {15) {3) 11 (39) (28)

Trading - interest rate contracts 1 {4) {3) - - -
- foreign exchange contracts 25 {24} 1 24 (19} 5

- oil price contracts 97 (69) 28 70 (68} 2

Interest rate contracts include forward and futures contracts, swap agreements, options and swaptions. Foreign exchange contracts include forward
and futures contracts, swap agreements and opticns. Oil price contracts are those which require settlernent in cash and include futures contracts,

swap agreements and options.

The following table shows the average net fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments held for trading purposes during the year:

£ million

1997 1996

Average Average

net fair value net falr value

asset (liabllity} asset (liability}

interest rate contracts 2 =
Foreign exchange contracts 1 g
Qif price contracts 15 20

14 22
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27 Derivative financial instruments continued

The group measures its market risk exposure, i.e. potential gain or loss
in fair values, on its trading activity using a value at risk technique, This
technique is based on a variance/covariance mode! and makes a
statistical assessment of the market risk arising from possible future
changes in markst values over a 24-hour period. The calculation of the
range of potential changes in fair value takes into account a snapshot
of the end-of-day exposures, and the history of one day price
movements over the previous twelve menths, together with the
correlation of these price movements. The potential movement in fair
values is expressed to three standard deviations which is equivalent

to a 99.7% confidence level. This means that, in broad terms, one
would expect to see an increase or a decrease in fair values greater
than the value at risk on only one oceasion per year if the portfolio
were left unchanged.

ON ACCOUNTS

D

The group calculates value at risk cn all instruments that are held for
trading purposas and that therefore give an exposure to market risk.
The valug at risk model takes account of derivative financial instruments
such as interest rate forward and futures contracts, swap agreemeants,
options and swapticns, foreign exchange forward and futures contracts,
swap agreements and options and oil price futures, swap agreements
and options. Financial assets and liabilities and physical crude oil and
refined products that are treated as trading positions are also included
in these calculations. The valug at risk calculation for cil price exposure
also includes derivative commodity instruments (commodity contracts
that permit settlement either by delivery of the underlying commadity or
in cash), such as forward contracts.

The following table shows values at risk for trading activities.

£ million

1997 1996

High Low Average Year end Average Year end

Interest rate contracts - 2 1 1 -
Foreign exchange rate contracts - 2 1 2 -
Ol price contracts 2 4 2 4 2

In the light of evelving disclosure requirements in both the UK and the
U3, the presentation of trading results shown below now includes
certain activities of the group’s oil trading division which involve the use
of derivative financial instruments in conjunction with physical and
paper trading of oil. it is considered that a more comprehensive
reprasentation of the group’s oil trading activities is given by the
classification of the gains or losses on such derivatives along with the
physical and paper trades to which they relate.

The following table shows the trading income arising from derivatives
and other financial instruments. For cil price contract trading, this also
includes income or losses arising on trading of derivative commodity
instruments and physical oil trades, representing the net result of the
oit-rading pertfolio.

£ million
1997 1996
Net gain Net gain
Interest rate contracts 1 1
Foreign exchange contracts 14 9
Qil price contracts 88 80
103 a0

For oil price contracts, a recongiliation from the presentation previously used to the current presentation is provided below.
£ miflion
1997 1986
Trading income on derivative financial instruments under previous classification 31 5
Effect of linking to related derivative commodity instruments and physical oil positions 57 75
88 80

Net trading income cn 9;’1-;[a_§|_i_n_g_ _pc_;_r_tfolio
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28 Called up share capital
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No change was made during 1997 to the parent company’s authorised share capital of £2,000 million. The allotted share capital at 31 December

was as follows: 1997 1996
Shares £ million Shares £ million
Non-equity
8% {now 5.8%-+tax credit) cumulative first preferencesshares of £1 each 7,232,838 7 7,232,838 7
9% (now B.3%+tax credit) cumulative second preference shares of £1 each 5,473,414 5 5,473,414 5
Equity
Ordinary shares of 2&p each 5,762,583,600 1,441 5,650,206,533 1,413
1,453 1,425

On a show-of-hands vote at a general meeting, shareholders present in persen have ong vote each. On a poll, shareholders present in person

or by proxy have two votes for every £5 in nominal amount of the first and second preference shares held and one vote for every ordinary share held.
During the year, 87,179,485 ordinary shares were issued under the share dividend plan by capitalisation of the share premium account.

In addition, 25,197,572 ordinary shares were issued during the year under employee share schemes.

29 Share premium account i £ million

1997 1996
At 1 January 2,012 1,849
Employee share schemes 88 77
Share dividend plan (22) 14)
At 31 December 2,078 2,012

Shgresrissrged under the share dividend plan are issued as fuI!y paid by capitalisation of the share premium apcount.

30 Reserves

Group reserves include the following amounts, the distributicn of which
is limited by statutory or other restrictions:

As a consolidated income statement is presented, a separate income
statement for the parent company is not required to be published.

_ Emillion The profit for the year of the group dealt with by the parent company
1997 1996 and the reserves of the parent company are as follows:
B £ million
Parent company 10 10 —

Subsidiary undertakings 1,450 1,675 1997 1996
Associated undertakings _ 639 760 At 1 January 3,017 2,608
2158 2 445 Profit for the year 1,058 1,244
- — Distribution to shareholders (1,262) {1,102)

Share dividend plan 553 267

At 31 December 3,366 3017

31 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ interest £ million
For the year ended 31 December Note 1997 1996
Profit for the year 2,470 2,552
Currency tranglation differences (538) (818)
Distribution tc shareholders g {1,262) (1,102
Share dividend plan i - 583 267
Movement in group reserves 1,223 899
Shares issued 94 82
Net increase in shareholders’ interest 1,317 981
Sharcholders’ interest at 1 January - 12795 11814
Sharehoiders’ interest at 31 December 14,112 12,795

Currency translation differences for the year inciude unrealised losses of £1 million (£1 milion) on long-term borrowings used to finance equity

investments in foreign currencies.



32 Group cash flow statement analysis

0

(a) Reconciliation of historical cost profit before interest and _ £ million

tax to net cash inflow from operating activities 1997 1996
Historical cost profit before interest and tax 3,942 4,078
Depreciaticn 1,816 2,020
Exploration expenditure written off 68 203
Share of profits of associated undertakings, less dividends received - {62)
Interest and other income (106) {115}
Loss on sale or termination of operations 105 175
Charge for provisions 229 289
Utilisation of provisions (149) (202}
Decrease {increase) in stocks 268 (556)
Decrease (increase) in debtors 319 (1,782)
(Decrease) increase in creditors (719} 944
Net cash inflow from operating activities 5,773 4,892

{b) Exceptional items

The cash outfiow relating to the refinery network rationalisation costs charged in 1995 was £14 million (£42 million}. The cash outflow in respect of the
European refining and marketing joint venture implementation costs charged in 1996 was £187 million (£44 milior). Both amounts were included in

the net cash infiow from operating activities.

£ million
{c) Financing 1997 1896
Long-term berrowing (22) (23}
Repayments of long-term borrowing 372 1,278
Short-term borrowing {740) (848)
Repayments of shart-term borrowing 732 182
272 591
Issue of crdinary share capital {44) {34}
Net cash outflow 228 557
£ million
{d) Management of liquid resources 1997 1996
Purchases 15 208
Sales {22) (254
Net cash infiow N 7 o 7 {45)
Liguid rescurces comprise current asset investments.
(e} Commercial paper
Net maovements in commercial paper arerincluded within short-term borrowings or repayment of short-term t_)orrowings as appropriate.
£ million
1997 1996
Current Current
Finance asset Net Finance asset Net
() Movement in net debt debt Cash investments debt debt Cash  investments _ debt
At 1 January (4,532) 95 58 {4,379) (5,498) 294 101 (5,103)
Net cash flow 272 25 ] 290 531 {198) {45) 348
Other movements (41} - 3 (38} (n - 2} (19
Exchange adjustments 4 (7 ) (55) 392 (1) 4 88
At 31 December (4,348) 113 53 {4,182) {4,532) 95 58 {4,379}
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33 Operating leases

£ million
1997 1996
Land and Land and
Annual commitments under operating leases buildings Other buildings Other
Expiring within: 1 year 9 80 10 62
210 5 years 30 209 28 161
Thereafter 68 29 75 98
107 318 113 319
Minimum future fease payments Total Total
Payable within: 1 year 399 3g7
2to 5 years 1,033 1,012
Thereafter 775 758
2,20_'4_’ B 2,‘}67
34 Employee share schemes
Tne company offers its employees and those of most of its principal Employee share options granted
operating companies the opportunity to acquire a shareholding in BP. during the year (options thousands)} 1997 1986
Scheme design vgrles by country, reflecting 1gcal legislation, culture a!'ld Savings refated and similar schemes 7,389 5,242
employment practice. There are two categories of scheme: those which ESOS 2,969 1905
are generally available to staff who meet a minimum service qualification ’ :
(e.g. the Participating and Savings Related Share Option Schemes 9,658 7147

in the UK) and those for definad categories of staff (e.g. the Executive
Share Option Scheme (ESOS) for middle managers).

Under participating schemes, the company matches employees’
own contributions of shares, ali of which are then held for defined
periods. With savings related schemes, employees save regularly
toward the purchase of sharas at a price fixed when their savings
contract cemmences. The ESOS offers middle managers the
cpportunity to exercise share options between the third and tenth
anniversaries of the date of grant, at the market price sel at the
time of grant. Grants made since 1995 under the ESOS will not
be exercisable until a performance condition has baen satisfied.
Before any options can be exercised, the Remuneration Committee
will reguire the total return to shareholders (share price increase with
alt dividends reinvested) on an investment in BP shares to exceed the
mean total return to shareholders of a representative group of UK
companies by a margin set from time to time by the committes. The
performance period for each grant will normally be three years.

During 1997 the company established an Employee Share
Ownership Pian (ESOP) to acquire BP shares to satisfy future
requirernents of certain employes share schemes. Funding is provided
1o the ESOP by the company. The assets and liabilities of the ESOP
are recognised as assets and liabilities of the company within these
accounts. The ESOP has waived its rights to dividends.

At 31 December 1997 the ESOP held 18,790,000 shares.

35 Long term performance plan

Senior executives and the executive directers participate in the Long
Term Performance Plan (the Pian). This is an incentive scheme under
which the Remuneration Committee may award shares to participants
or fund the purchase of shares for participants if long-lerm targets are
met. The Plan has replaced the granting of executive share options to
participants. Further details of the Plan are given in the Report of the
Remuneration Committee on pages 58 to 61.

The cost of potential future awards is accrued over the performance
period of the Plan, usually three years. The amount charged in 1997
was £17 million (£20 million).

The value of awards under the 1994-6 Plan made in 1987 was
£17 mitfion (1991-5 Pian £34 milion).

The exercise prices for the options granted during the year were £5.78
for savings related and similar schemes and £6.77 (2,216,000 options)
and £7.33 (53,000 options) for the ESOS.

Shares issued in respect of options exercised

during the year (shares thousands) 1997 1996
Savings related and similar schemes 13,974 5,545
ESOS 4,402 6,222

18,376 11,767

In addition, 6,822,000 shares (8,240,000 shares) wers issued under
participating share schemes.

Options outstanding at 31 December 1997 1996
Options 46,400,000 57,818,000
Exercise period 1998 - 2007 1997 - 2006
Price £2.06-£7.33 £2.06-£5.41

Details of directors’ Individual participation in share schemes are given
in the Report of the Remuneration Com mittee on pages 58 to 1.

Employee Share Ownership Plans (ESOPs) have bean established to
acquire BP shares to satisfy any awards made to participants under the
Plan and then to hold them for the participants during the retention
period of the Plan. In order to hedge the cost of potential future awards
the ESOPs may, from time to time gver the performance period of the
Plans, purchase BP shares in the open market. Funding is provided t¢
the ESOPs by the company. The assets and liabiiities of the ESOPs
are recognised as asséts and liabilities of the company within these
accounts. The ESOPs have waived their rights to dividends.

At 31 December 1997 the ESOPs held 3,274,000 shares for potential
future awards.
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36 Directors remuneration

£ thousand Emoluments These amounts comprise fees paid to the chairman

1997 1996 and non-executive directors, and, for executive directors, salary and
. benefits earned during the relevant financiat year, plus bonuses awarded

Total for all directors for the year.
Emplumentsa . . 5,059 4,838 Pension contributions Six executive directors participate in a
Gains made o the exercise of share options - 89 1459 non-contributory pension scheme established for UK staff by a separate
Amourﬂs awarded under long term trust fund to which contributions are made by BP based on actuarial
incentive schemes H173 8,454 advice. There were no contributions to this pension scheme in 1997
Highest paid director or 1986, One executive director, Or Stomberg, is a member of the
Emoluments 938 752 Deautsche BP pension scheme. In 1997 £1,585,000 (£431,000) was set
Gains made on the exercise of share opticns 64 - aside to provide for his pension entitiernent.
Amount awarded under long term Report of the Remuneration Committee Full details of indivicdual
incentive schemes 821 1,716 directors’ remuneration are given in the Report of the Remuneration
Accrued pension at 31 December 338 260 Committee on pages 58 te 61.

2 The fees of £37,000 {£33,000) in respect of Mr H M £ Miles' services
asa non-exeouti\{e directer are paid to his employer.

37 Loans to officers

Miss J C Hanratty has arlc_h_\gy interest_ loan of £26,000 made to her prior to her appointment as Cc_;qu_amy Secretary on 1 October 1994.

38 Employee costs and numbers £ million
1997 1996
{a) Employee costs
Wages and salaries 1,645 1,633
Social security costs 139 155
Pension costs {46} 36
1,738 1,824
1997 1996
(b} Number of employees at 31 December
Expleration and Production 6,850 6,450
Refining and Marketing 39,450 36,300
Chemicals 8,250 8,650
Other businesses and corporate 1,900 1,750
56,450 53,150
1997 1996
Rest of Rest of Rest of Rast of
UK Europe USA World Tota! UK Europe USA World Total
(c) Average number of empioyees
Expleration and Production 3,000 350 1,350 2,050 6,750 2,800 400 1,450 1,860 5,500
Refining and Marketing 9,550 10,000 10,200 8,850 38,600 7,550 9,650 10,150 8,200 35,550
Chemicals 4,650 2,850 850 100 8,450 4,850 3,050 1,450 250 9,600
- Other businesses and corporate 850 200 200 600 1,850 750 150 200 850 2,060

18,050 13,400 12,600 11,600 55,650 15950 13,250 13,250 11280 53,700
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39 Pensions

Most group companies have pension pians, the forms and benefits

of which vary with conditions and practices in the countries concerned.
The main plans provide benefits that are computed based on an
employee’s years of service and final pensionable salary. In most cases
group companies make contributions to separately administered trusts,
based on advice from independant actuaries using dctuarial methods,
the objective of which is to provids adeguate funds to meet pension
obligations as they fall dus. In certain countries the plans are unfunded
and the obligation for pension benefits is included within other
Provisions.

The net credit to income for pensions in 1997 was £46 million
{charge — £38 milion). This was assessed in accordance with
incdlependent actuarial advice using the prajected unit method for the
group’s major pension plans.

40 Other post-retirement benefits

Certain group companies, principally in the United States, provide
post-retirernent healthcare and life insurance benefits to their retired
employees and dependants. The entitlernant o these benefits is usually
based on the employee remaining in service until retirement age and
completion of a minimum pericd of service. The plans are unfunded
and the liability for post-retirernent benefits is included within other
Rrovisions.

The charge to income for post-retirement benefits in 1997
of £24 millicn (£38 million) was assessed in accordance with
independent actuarial advice using the projected unit method.

41 Contingent liabilities

There wera contingent liabilities at 31 Decamber 1997 in respect of
guarantees and indemnities entered into as part of, and claims arising
from, the ordinary course of the group’s business, upon which no
material losses are likely to arise.

Approximately 200 lawsuits were filed in State and Federal Courts in
Alaska seeking compensatory and puritive damages arising cut of the
Exxon Valdez oil spill in Prince William Sound in March 1989, Mest of
those suits named Exxon, Alyeska Pipeline Service Company (Alyeska),
which operates the oil terminal at Valdez, and the seven oil companies
which own Alyeska. Alyeska initially responded to the spill until the
respense was taken over by Exxon. BP owns a 50% interest in Alyeska
through a subsidiary of BP America Inc. Alyeska and its owners have
settled all of the claims against therm under these lawsuits. Exxon has
indicated that it may file a claim for contribution against Alyeska for a
portion of the costs and damages which it has incurred. If any claims
are asserted by Exxon which affect Alyeska and its owners, BP would
defend the claims vigorously.

The group s subject fo numerous national and tocal environmental laws
and regulations concerning its products, operations and other activities.

42 Related party transactions

During the year the group purchased erude oil from two associated
undertakings, Abu Dhabi Marine Areas Limited and Abu Dhabi
Petrolsum Company Limited, to the value of £618 million (2676 million}.
At 31 December 1897 £56 millien (£53 million) was payable in respect
of these purchases.

The principal assumptions used in calculating the credit/charge were in
the following ranges:
1997 1696

7% to 10% 7% to 10%
4% to 7% 4% 1c 7%
nil to 5% nil to 5%

Rate of return on assets/discount rate
Future salary increases
Future pensicn increases

At 1 January 1997, the date of the latest actuarial valuations or reviews,
the market value of assets in the group’s major externally funded
pension plans was £9,200 miliion (£8,624 million}. The actuarial value
of the assets of these plans represented 131% (125%) of the benefits
that had accrued to members of those plans, after allowing for
expected future increases in salaries.

At 31 December 1997 the obligation for accrued benefits in respect
of the principal unfunded schemes was £891 million {£982 milficn).
Of this amount, £735 million (€799 million} has been provided in
these accounts.

At 31 December 1997 the independent actuaries have reassessed
the obligation for post-retirement benefits at £363 million (£350 million).
The provision for post-retirement benefits at 31 December 1987 was
£499 million (£481 million).

The discount rate used to assess the cbligation at 31 December
1007 was B.75% (7.0%). The assumed future healthcare cost trend rate
for 1998 and subsequent years is 5.0%.

These laws and regulations may require the group to take future action
1o remediate the effects on the environment of orior disposal or release
of chemical or petroleumn substances by the group or other parties.
Such contingencies may exist for various sites including refineries,
chermical plants, cil fields, service stations, tetminals and waste disposal
gites. In addition, the group may have obligations relating to prior asset
sales or closed facilities. The ultimate requirement for remediation and
its cost s inherently diifficult to estimate, Howsver, the estimated cost of
known environmental obligations has bean provided in these accounts
in accordance with the group's accounting policies. While the amounts
of future costs could be significant and could be material to the group’s
results of operaticns in the period in which they are recognised, BP
doss not expect these costs to have a material eflect on the group’s
financial position or liquidity.

The parent company has issued guarantees under which amounts
outstanding at 31 December 1997 were £3,789 milion (£3,431 million)
including £3,788 million (23,430 million) in respect of borrowings by its
subsidiary undertakings. )

During the year the group sold chemical feedstocks totalling
£335 million {£312 milion) to Erddichemie, an asscciated undertaking,
and bought petrochemicals, mainly polyethylene, to the value of
£39 million (£254 million), At 31 December 1997 the outstanding
balances receivable from and payable to Erddichemie were £3 million
41 rmillion) and £nil (29 millicn) respectively.
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43 Subsidiary and associated undertakings, joint ventures and similar arrangements

The more important subsidiary and associated undertakings, joint ventures and similar arrangements of the group at 31 December 1997 and

the group percentage of equity capital or joint venture interest {to nearest whole number) are set out below. The principal country of operation

is generally indicated by the cormpany’s country of incorporation or by its name. These held directly by the parent company are marked with

an asterisk (%), the percentage owned being that of the group unless otherwise indicated. A complete list of investraents in subsidiary and associated
undertakings and joint ventures will be attached to the parent company's annual return made to the Registrar of Companies. Advantage has been
taken of the exemption conferred by regulation 7 of The Partnerships and Unlimited Companies (Accounts) Regulations 1993 from the requirements
to deliver to the Registrar of Companies and publish the annual accounts of the BP/Mabil joint ventures.

Subsidiary Country of Subsidiary Country of
undertakings % incorporation Principal activities undertakings % incorporation Principal activities
International Europe - coniinued
BP Chemicals Portugal
Investments 100 England Chemicals B8P Portuguesa 100 Pertugal Marketing
BP Exploration 100 Scotland Exploration and production Spain
*BF International 100 England Integrated oil operations BP Espana 100  Spain Refining and marketing
BP Ofl International 100 England Integrated oil operations Switzerland
BP Exploration BP (Switzerland) 100 Switzetland  Marketing
Operating Company 100 England Exploration and production Turkey
*BP Shipping 100  England Shinping “BP Petrolleri 100 Turkey Marketing
Europe Middte East
UK *BP Middle East 100  England Marketing
BP Capital 100  England Finance Africa
BP Chemicals 100 England Chemicals *BP Southern Africa 100 South Africa  Refining and marketing
BP Qil UK 100  England Refining and marketing
*Britoil {parent 15%) 100 Scotland Exploration and production  Far East
*Tanker Insurance Singapore _ - _
Company 100 England Insurance *BP Singapore 100  Singapore Refining and marketing
Austria Australasia
*BP Austria 100 Austria Marketing Australia
Belgium BP Australia 100 Australia Integrated cil operations
BP Belgium 100 Belgium Marketing and finance BP Finance Australia 100  Australia Finance
France BP Developments
BP France 100 France Refining and marketing Australia 100 USA Exploration and production
and chemicals New Zealand
Germany BP Oil New Zealand 100 New Zealand Marketing
Ceutsche BP 100 Germany Refining apd marketing Western Hemisphere
R and chemicals USA
reece B8P America Exploration and production,
BP Greece 100 England Marketing Standard Qil }100 USA refﬁwing and marEeting,
Nethertands pipelines and chemicals
B8P Capital 100 Netherlands  Finance
B8P Nederland 100 Nethertands  Refining and marketing
Associated undertakings % Country of incorporation Principal activities Issued share capital
Abu Dhabi
Abu Dhabi Marine Areas 37 England Crude oil production 1.65 millicn shares of ££1
Abu Dhabi Petroleum 24 England Crude oil preduction 11.21 million ordinary shares of £1
Germany
Erddichemie 50 Germany Chemicals DM320 million
Ruhrgas 25  Germany (Gas distribution 44 million shares of M5S0
Russia
Sidanco® 10 Russia integrated oil operations 232 million shares of 40 Roubles
Rusia 20 Russia Exploration and production 45 million shares of 10,000 Roubles
8 20% voting interest
Joint ventures and
similar arrangements % Principal place of business Principal activities
BPR/Mobit 70/49% Europe Refining and marketing
Bruce field 37 UK -Offshere Exploration and production
Forties field 93 UK - Offshore Exploration and production
Magnus field 85 UK - Offshore Exploraticn and production
Miller fielc 40 UK - Offshore Exploration and preduction
Wytch Farm 50 UK~ Onshore Exploration and production
Ulz field 80 Norway — Offshore Exploration and production
North West Shelf 17 Australia Natural gas preduction and shipping
Endicott field 57 USA Alaska Exploration and production
Kuparuk field 39 USA Alaska Exploration and production
Milne Point field 21 USA Alaska Exploration and production
Prudhoe Bay field (oi rim/gas cap)  51/14 USA Alaska Exploration and production
Trans Alaska Pipeline 50 USA Alaska Pipelines
Cusiana/Cupiagua 19  Colombia Exploration and production

b FuelsAubricants




NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

44 Oil and gas exploration and production activities’

£ million
1997 1996
Rest of Rest of Rest of Rest of
UK Europe USA World Total UK Europe USA World Total
Capitalised costs at 31 December
Gross capitalised costs .
Proved properties 10,901 1,132 10,393 2442 24,868 10,041 1,167 9,623 1,031 22,762
Unproved properties 166 18 266 833 1,283 176 10 233 753 1,174
11,067 1,150 10,659 3,275 26,151 10,217 1,177 9,856 2,686 23,938
Accumulated depreciation 5,486 720 6,043 805 13,064 4,834 717 5,618 782 11,949
Net capitalised costs 5,581 430 4,618 2,470 13,097 5,383 480 4,240 1,004 11,987
Costs incurred
for the year ended 31 December
Acquisition of properties
Proved - 58 3 - 61 - 14 - - 14
U_n_proved - 50 - 50 - - 25 26 51
- 58 53 - 111 - 14 25 26 65
Exploration and appraisal costs? 47 27 146 294 514 81 23 147 234 485
Development costs 833 33 552 3g2 1,810 965 22 429 280 169_6
Total costs 880 118 751 6836 2,435 1,046 59 801 540 2,246
Results of operations
for the year ended 31 December
Turnover®
Third parties 1,634 341 1,847 177 3,799 1,738 238 1,874 227 4,073
Sales between businesses 806 ] 230 1,042 2,078 1168 4 180 1,080 2,433
N 2,440 341 1,877 1,219 5877 2,905 240 2,054 1,307 8,508
Exploration expenditure 32 12 a0 65 199 50 19 69 65 203
Production costs 331 56 343 124 854 400 40 316 100 858
Production taxes 162 188 252 603 280 - 234 285 799
Other costs (income)® 45 - i21 380 546 162 @ 140 432 730
Depreciation 663 83 330 119 1,195 799 79 327 125 1,330
Decommissioning 42 5 B 5 58 46 1 9 2 58
o 7 1,275 156 1,079 945 3,455 1,737 135 1,005 1,009 3,976
Profit before taxation® 1,185 185 798 274 2,422 1,168 105 Q59 298 2,530
Allocable taxes 379 71 278 56 785 419 61 375 67 Q22
Results of ope@ﬁgns‘ 786 114 519 218 1,837 749 44 _ 584 231 1,608

»

This note relates to the requirements contained within the UK Statement
of Recommended Practice ‘Disclosures about cil and gas exploration
and production activities’. Mid-stream activities of natural gas gathering
and distribution and the operation of the main pipelines and tankers are
excluded. The main mid-stream activities are the Alaskan transportation
facilities, the Forties Pipeline systern and Ruhrgas gas distribution
operations. Profits on sale or termination of operations relating 1o the oll
and gas exploration and production activities, which have been
accounted as exceptional items, are also excluded.

b Exploration and appraisat drilling expenditure and licence acquisition
costs are initially capitalised within intangible fixed assets in accordance
with BP group accounting pokcy. )

¢ Turnover represents sales of production excluding royaity oil where
royalty is payable in kind.

9 Includes cost of royalty oif not taken in kind and property taxes.

e The exploration and production business replacement cost operating
profit comprises:

] £ million

) N ) 1997 1996
Exploration and production activities — as above 2,422 2,530
Stock holding (gains) losses (10) 12
Mid-stream activities 548 521
Replacement cost operating profit 2,960 39@

T Income from the group's share of oil and gas produced by associated
undertakings is included within results of operations.

4 Excludes A O Sidance.



DIRECTORS® STATEMENT AND AUDITORS® REPORT

Statement of directors” responsibilities in respect of the accounts

Company law requires the directors to prepare accounts for each The diractors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting

financial year which give a true and fair view 0f the state of affairs records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

of the company and the group and of the profit or loss of the group the financial pesition of the group and which enabie them to

for that period. In preparing those accounts, the directors are ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 1985,
required to; They are also responsible for taking reascnable steps to

safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them , "
fraud and other irreguiarities.

consistently, : ) ' .
The directors confirm that they have complied with these
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and requirements, and, having a reascnable expectation that the.
prudent; company has adequate resources to continue in operational

existence for the foreseeable future, continue to adopt the geing

+ state whether applicable accounting standards have been . )
concern basis in preparing the accounts.

followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the accounts;

* prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the group will continue in business.

Report of the auditors

To the Members of The British Petroleum Company p.l.c.

We have audited the accounts on pages 28 to 50, which have been We planned and performed our audit 50 as to obtain all the

prepared under the historical cost convention and on the basis of information and explanations which we considered necessary

the accounting policies set out on pages 28 and 29. We have also in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
audited the information specified for audit by the London Stock assurance that the accounts are free from material misstatement,
Exchange which is set out on pages 59 to 81 in the Report of the whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our
Remuneration Committee. opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation

of information in the accounts.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As dascribed above, the company’s directors are respensible for Opinion

the preparation of the accounts. It is cur responsibility to form an In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state
independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and of affairs of the company and of the group as at 31 December 1997
to report our opinion to you. and of the profit of the group for the year then ended and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,
Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment

of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors Ernst & Young
in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting Chartered Accountants
policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances, consistently Registered Auditor

London

10 February 1998

appiied and adequately disclosed.




OIL AND GAS RESERVES

Supplementary information on oil and gas quantities

Movements in estimated net proved reserves

1897

Crude oil* Natural gas®
millions of barrels billions of cubic feet
Rest of Rest of Rest of Rest of
Subsidiary undertai_&ings UK Europe USA World Total UK Europe USA World Total
At 1 January 1997
Developed 579 128 1,881 226 2,814 2506 20 2,418 1,607 6,551
Undeveloped ) 896 19 827 346 2,088 1,976 5 415 1,058 3,452
1,475 147 2,708 572 4,902 4,482 25 2,833 2,663 10,003
Changes attributable to:
Revisions of previous estimates 30 5 (15} 17 37 88 - 112 (22 178
Redetermination cf interests - - - - - - - - - -
Purchases of reserves-in-place 9 67 2 - 78 196 13 2 - 211
Extensions, discoveries and
other additions 85 27 292 26 430 81 289 392 375 1,137
Improved recovery 29 - 55 1 85 9 - - a8 105
Production {(145) (33) (202 (34) (414) {434) {(14) (115) (125) (688}
Sales of reserves-in-place (&1} {27 - - (88) {153) (28%) - - (442)
o (53) 38 132 10 128 (21 3} (1 391 324 501
At 31 December 1997
Developed 699 172 1,853 324 3,048 2,482 17 2,510 1,668 6,575
Undeveloped 723 4 BT 258 1,982 1,787 7 714 1,421 3,929
1,422 186 33840" 582 5,030 4,265 24 3,224 2,8879 10,504
Associated undertakings®
BP share
At 1 January 1997 1,869 -
Net revisions (1) -
Production 3 @43 -
At 31 December 1997 1,8254 -
Total group and BP share of assg_ciated undertakings 6,855 10,504

a Grude ol includes natural gas fiquids and condensate. Net proved reserves of crude oil exclude production royalties due to cthers.

b Proved reserves in the Prudhoe Bay field in Alaska include an estimated 85 million barrels upon which a net profits royalty will be payable over the life

of the field under the terms of the BP Prudhoe Bay Royalty Trust.

Associated undertakings

¢ Excludes reserves in A O Sidanco.

9 The group holds proportionate interests, through associated undertakings, in onshore and offshore concessions in Abu Dhabi expiring in 2014 and
2018 respectively. If recent production levels were 1o continue, these reserves weuld not be fully recovered during the period of the concessions.

¢ Net proved reserves of natural gas exclude production royalties due to others.

fincludes 81 billion cubic feet of natural gas consumed in Alaskan operations.

9 Inciudes rrieisgrvgg_l_o_r_:ated in Australia tp;q@!iqg L@@Obillion cubic feet.




FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

Summar ised group income statements

£ million $ million
1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1893 1994 1995 1996 1997

Turnover 34,950 33,116 36,106 44,731 43,460 52,425 50.66? 57,047 869,780 71,274
Replacement cost

operating profit 2,501 2725 3410 4,182 4,321 3,752 4,162 5388 6540 7,086
Exceptional items (240) 36 (968) 516) 62) (360) 55  (1,530) (8C5) {101)
Replacement cost

profit before interest and tax 2,261 2,761 2442 3,676 4,259 3392 4224 3,858 5735 6,985
Stock holding gains (fosses) 284) 62 2 402 (317) 426) 95 4 627 {520)
Historical cost

profit before interest and tax 1,877 2823 2,444 4,078 3,942 2966 4,319 3,862 6,362 6,465

Interest expense 675 542 498 411 296 1,013 829 787 641 486
Profit hefore taxation ' 1,302 2,281 1,846 3,667 3,646 1,953 3480 3,075 5,721 5,979
Taxation 685 692 829 1,107 1,168 1,027 1,058 1,310 1,72r 1,915
Profit after taxation 617 1,589 1,117 2,560 2,478 926 2,431 1,765 3,994 4,064
Minority shareholders’ interest {MS)) 2 12 5) 8 8 3 18 8) 13 13
Profit for the year 615 1,677 1,122 2,552 2,470 923 2,413 1,773 3,981 4,051

Distribution to sharshelders 458 578 850 1,102 1,262 687 884 1,343 1,719 2,070
Retained profit for the year 157 999 272 1,450 1,208 238 1,529 430 2,262 1,981

Earnings per ordinary share 11.3p 288p 202p 455p 48.3p $0.17  $044  $0.32 $0.71  $0.7M

ngjg?nds per ordinary share 8.40p 10.50p 15.25p 19.50p 22.00p For $ amounts see pags 66

Replacement cost results

Historical cost profit 615 1,577 1,122 2,552 2,470 923 2,413 1,773 3,981 4,051
Stock holding (gains) losses,

net of MSI - 281 {62) (2) (402 317 422 (95) (4 (627) 520
Replacement cost profit ]

for the year 896 1,515 1,120 2,180 2,787 1,345 2,318 1,769 3,354 4,571
Exceptional items, net of tax and MSI 229 (33) 833 470 35 343 51 1,412 733 57

Replacement cost profit
before exceptional items 1,125 1,482 2,013 2,620 2,822 1,688 2,267 3,181 4,087 4,628

Earnings per ordinary share

Cn replacement cost profit
before exceptional items 207p  27.1p  363p  467p  495p $0.31  $0.41  $0.57 8073 $0.81

Translation into US dollars

Figures given in US dollars on pages 53 to 55 and 57 have been derived from the sterling amounts as follows:
£1=US dollar

1993 1994 1895 1996 1997

Income and cash flow statsments, capital expenditure and acquisitions - at average
exchange rates for the year 1.50 1.53 1.58 1.56 1.64

Balance sheets - at year end exchange rates

148 156 156 169 1.66




FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

Summarised group balance sheets

B £ million $ miilion
) 71993. 1994 1995 1996 1997 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997
Fixed assets 22,706 22,181 22,609 21,820 23,183 33605 34618 35270 36,876 38,484
Stocks and debtors 8,101 8,709 9348 10,599 9,528 11,090 13586 14,583 17912 15816
Cash and liquid resources N 210 188 395 163 166 310 294 617 259 276
Tota! assets 31,017 31,088 32352 32,572 32,877 459005 48,498 50470 55047 54,576
Creditors and provisions
excluding finance debt B 12,789 13,176 14,932 15,136 14,361 18,028 20,653 23,285 25,680 23,840
Capital employed 18228 1 7,913 17,420 17,438 18,516 26977 27,945 27,175 29,467 30,736
Financed by:
Finance debt 8,380 6,747 5498 4532 4,348 12402 10526 8577 7,659 7,217
Minority shareholders’ interest 100 109 108 109 56 148 170 168 184 93
BP shareholders’ interest 9,7487” 11,057 11,814 12,795 14,112 il_,t_127 17,248 18,430 21,624 23,429
18,228 17,918 17420 17,436 18,516 26977 27,045 27,175 29,467 30,736
Summarised group cash flow statements
e £ mitlion $ million
1693 1994 1995 19986 1997 1983 1994 1985 1996 1997
Net cash inflow from
operating activities 4,453 4513 5095 4992 5773 6,679 6,205 8,060 7,788 9,468
Net cash outflow from servicing of
finance and returns on investments (596) B17) (385) @371 {213} (893) (781) (608) 579 (349)
Tax paid {681} (738) 314 (949) (829) {1,022) {1,129) (496) (1,480) (1,360)
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure (2,219} (1,988) (2,444) (2,795) (3,416) (3,327) (3,042) (3,862) (4,360) (5,602}
Net cash inflow (outflow) for
acquisitions and disposals 1,430 369 44 157 (426) 2,145 565 71 245 (699)
Equity dividends paid 439 424) {625 {720} (643) (659 (649) B831) (1,124} (1,055)
Net cash inflow o tmae 1 215 1,471 314 246 2,923 1859 2324 480 403
Financing 1,973 1,220 1,264 557 228 2,858 1,866 1,897 869 374
Management of liquid resources 13 (31) 43 (45} 7 20 {48) 68 70} (11}
inorease (docrease)incash  (38) 26 64 (198) 26 (56 41 269 (309 40
- ) i ,948_ 3 _1 _,__21__5 o _!_,_4?1 ‘ 3147 N 725767”27923 1,859 _ 2324_ 480 ] 403




OPERATING INFORMATION

Statistics

Crude oil and natural gas production (net of royalties} 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997
UK 370 429 403 421 397
USA 827 605 572 562 553
Other 245 231 238 258 301
Crude oil production (thousand barrels per day) 1,242 1,265 1,213 1,241 1,251
UK 824 872 838 1,096 1,189
USA 92 69 62 78 92
Other 217 321 346 361 382
Natural gas production {million cubic feet per day) 1,133 1,262 1,246 1,535 1,663
Total production {thousand barrels oil equivalent per day) 1,437 1,483 1,428 1,506 1,538
Group refinery throughputs? (thousand barrels per day) 1,845 1,736 1,899 1,730 1,797
For BP by others 1 9 10 8 12
Total 1,856 1,745 1,909 1,738 1,808

2 Includes crude oif and other feedstock input to BP's crude distillation units both for BP and third parties.

b Enc&udes BP share of the BP/Mobil Eurcpean joint venture.

Crude oil and refined petroleum product sales

thousand barrels per day

Crude oil 1,087 2,489 2,837 3599 3426
Refined petrcleum products 3,019 2,954 3,067 3,029 3,262¢
Total oil sales 5006 5453 5904 6,628 6,688
¢ Includes BP share of the BP/Mobil European joint venture, ~ N
Estimated net proved reserves of crude oilde millions of barrels at 31 December
Developed 2,531 2,595 2,700 2,814 3,048
Undeveloped 2006 1,90 19685 2088 1,982
Group companies 4,637 4,585 4,665 4,902 5,030
Associated undertakings (BP share}
AbuDhabi _ e ] . 2000 1863 1912 1869 1825
Estimated net proved reserves of natural gas* biflions of cubic feet at 31 December
Developed 5661 6259 6592 6551 6575
Undeveloped 4573 3986 3,780 3,452 3,929
10,234 10,245 10,381 10,003 10,5&

Group companies

o

@

be payabjggyer__tljg _Iife ofr ;he field un_-;jer the terms of__t_he BP Prudhoe B_a

Average realisations

Net proved reserves of crude oil and natural gas exclude production royaities due to others.

Proved reserves in the Prudhoe Bay field in Alaska at 31 Decemnber 1997 include an astimated 65 million barrels upon which a net profit royalty will

North Sea
North Sea
Alagkan Narth _Slope

$lobl  17.1
Sobi 114
&bl 61

Further analysis is contained in BP Financial and Operating Information 1993-1997 (see page 67).

167 170 204 194
102 107 181 116
148 167 197 180




FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

Capital expenditure and acquisitions

. £ million $ million
1983 1924 1895 1996 1997 1993 1994 1995 1996 1987

By business

Exploration and Production 1,751 1,633 1,910 2415 2,748 25827 2,498 3,018 3,787 4,507
Refining and Marketing 811 687 683 761 174 1,217 1,051 1,072 1,187 1,269
Chemicals 222 164 247 239 272 333 251 390 373 446
Other businesses and corporate 18 34 15 27 274 176 53 24 43 450

2902 2518 2,855 3442 4,068 4353 3,853 4,511 5370 6,672

By geographicat area

UK2 807 734 988 1,321 1,353 1,211 1,122 1,563 2,081 2,219
Rest of Europe 488 296 318 378 518 732 453 502 590 850
USA 833 744 749 822 912 1,260 1,138 1,185 1,282 1,496
Rest of World 774 744 799 921 1,285 1160 1,140 1,263 1,437 2,107

2,802 2518 2855 3442 4,068 4353 3853 4511 5370 6672

a UK area includes the UK-based international activities of B8P Qil.
Cost of acquisitions included in this table includes the finance debt of acquired companies.

Ratios

The balance sheet elements shown on page 54 in £ million %
are used in the following ratios: 1893 1994 1985 1996 1997
Return on average capital employed

- replacement cost profit before exceptional items 9.4 11.3 14,3 17.5 17.4
— historical cost profit after exceptional items 6.7 11.8 9.1 17.0 154

(Based on profit after taxation before deducting interest expeanse)

Return on average BP shareholders’ interest
— replacement cost profit before exceptional items 11.6 14.2 17.6 21.3 21.0
- historical cost profit after exceptional items 6.3 18.2 2.8 20.7 18.4
{Based on profit after taxation and minority shareholders’ interest)

Payout ratio

— replacement cost profit before exceptional items 40.7 39.0 42.2 421 44,7
— historical cost profit after exceptional items 74.5 36.7 75.8 43.2 5.1
{Dividend: profit)

Debt to debt-plus-equity ratio 48.0 37.7 31.6 26.0 23.5
{Finance debt: finance debt plus BP and mincrity shareholders’ interest)

Debt to equity ratio 85.1 60.4 461 35.1 30.7
(Finance debt; BP and minority shareholders’ interest)

Net debt to net debt-plus-equity ratio 453 37.0 30.0 25.3 22.8
Net debt to equity ratio 83.0 58.7 42.8 33.9 205

(Net debt equals finance debt less cash and liqud resources)

M Pence per 25p ordinary share

Share price o
. 1993 1994 ) 1985 1996 1997
High 364 435 545 701 256
Daily average 304 395 459 601 787
Low 229 348 395 514 663

Endyear 31 425 539 700 80D
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

This report describes BP's remuneration philosophy and
programmes. :

It contains the following sections:
¢ The Remuneration Commiitee
« Remunsaration of executive directors and senior executives
* Remuneration of chairman and non-executive directors

The Remuneration Committee

Role

Acting on behalf of sharehoiders, the Remuneration Committee’s
role is to determine the terms of engagement and rermuneration
of the group chief executive and the managing directors.

The committee also establishes the principles for the
remuneration of other senior executives. These principles
then provide the framework for remunerating all employees.

The committee works with the executive directors to set
challenging arid demanding performance targets at the beginning
of the year, to ensure that a robust reward structure is in place,
and to make awards at the end of the year which reflect the
year's performance.

Composition
The committee is composed of the chairman and three other
non-executive directors: Mr P D Sutherland {committee chairman),
Mr G F Knight, Mr H M P Miles and The Lord Wright of Richmaend.
The committee members have no personal financial interests,
other than as sharsholders, in the matters to be decided. They
have no conflicts arising from cross-directorships or day-to-day
involvemant in running BP.
The committee actively solicits professional advice both
from within the company and from independent outside
consultants.

Compliance

The constitution and operation of the committes are in compliance
with Section A of the best practice provisions annexed to the
London Stock Exchange Listing Rules.

The committee also confirms that fuli consideration has been
given to the best practice provisions set out in Section B, annexed
to the Listing Rules, in framing its 1997-98 remuneration policy for
executive directors.

Ernst & Young have confirmed that the scope of their report on
the accounts covers the disclosures contained in this report that
are specified for audit by the London Stock Exchange.

Remuneration of executive directors and

senior executives

BP’s reward philosophy

The role of reward in BP is to support our business straiegy by
encouraging the actions and behaviour that deliver distinctive
performance. Reward is one of the tocls at cur disposal to help
make clear to people how they should focus their energies to

the best longer-term advantage of the company. Our targeting
demands continuous improvement in performance, with one year's
improvement providing the challenging platform for the next year's
targets. Within this framework, we aim to reward our directors’
achievements for results that enhance husingss performance and
shareholder value in both the long and short term.

Comparator information
Remuneration is set by reference to the employment market
in each director's and executive's home country. Surveys are
conducted on a regular basis to review remuneration levels in
companies that have a global spread of operations and are of
comparable size and complexity.

Within the UK, market data is obtained from independent
consultants’ surveys of a selection of major FTSE 100 companies.

The executive remuneration package

We aim to provide competitive reward for on-targét performance,
with the possibility of top reward for top performance. The package
baiances both long-term strategic and short-term performance
goals, and individual and team reward, through its three elements:
Base Salary, Annual Performance Bonus and the Long Term
Performance Plan (LTRPP).

As the organisational senicrity of the executive increases, so
base salary declines as a proportion of total potential remuneration,
and the two performance-linked ‘at risk’ elements increase
significantly. At executive director level, base salary forms only
approximately a quarter of the maximum target remuneration,
whereas the LTPP is potentially around half of the total.

Annual remuneration

Annual remuneration refers to the combination of Base Salary and
Annual Performance Bonus. Base salaries are reviewed annually
and targeted at the median of the national survey groups for futly
sffective job performance. This ensures that salariss are market
competitive, with higher salaries paid where justified by a sustained
higher level of individual contribution.

The annual performance bonus is a non-pensionable cash
payment for achieving targsts set out in collective and indivicual
annual performance contracts. The bonus plan focuses on
delivered results. The performance contracts reflect the
operating plans of the company and, in aggregate, are subject
to board approval.




UNITED STATES ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

US GAAP

The following is a summary of adjustrments to profit for the year and to BP sharsholders’ interest which would be required if generall
accepted accounting principles in the United States (US GAAP) had been applied instead of those generally accepted in the United

Kingdom (UK GAAP). The results are statad using the first-in first-cut method of stock valuation.

1997 1986
£ million
Profit for the year 2,470 2,652
Adjustments:
Depreciation charge? {99) (113
Deferred taxation® (132) (260}
Severance costs (24) (13)
European refining and marketing joint venture implementation costs (157) 170
Other 12 2
Profit for the year as adjusted 2,070 2,338
Per ordinary share 36.3p M.7p
Per American depositary receipt® 217.8p 250.2p
$ miflion
Profit for the yvear as adjusted 3,395 3,647
Per ordinary share $0.60 $0.65
Per American depositary receipt® $360  $3.90
£ million
BP shareholders’ interest 14,112 12,795
Adjustments:
Fixed assets® 872 958
Deferred taxation? (2,312) 2,217
Severance costs 43 71
European refining and marksting joint venture implementation costs 5 170
Other (99) (114)
BP shareholders’ interestasadjusted N 12821 11663
$ million
BP shareholders' interest as adjusted 20851 19,710

3 Under UK GAAP, proviéion for deferrad taxation is made where timing differences are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. Under US GAAP,
deferred taxation is provided on a full fiability basis on all temporary differences as defined in US Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No.108.
As required by this standard assets and liabilities of acquired businesses have been adjusted from a net-of-tax to a pre-tax hasis.

® One American depositary recelpl is equivalent to six 25p ordinary shares.
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Group performance and bonus ratings Annual remuneration € thousand)
1983 1994 1995 1936 1997 Annual Benefits

Oilprce $/DF 171 187 170 204 181 iy oo coobmems Tow o
Exchange rate $/£ 1.50 i.53  1.58 1.56 1.64 EJ P Browne 505 393 40 033 752
Cash from operations Son 87 69 81 78 85 gk Uy h T e
Netcashflowgon 29 19 23 .05 M gy éhé;e,‘é """""""""""""""""" 336 252 13 601 569
Profit $bn®
Rotun o ghrade caplal s m w4 7 1y BKSandeson TS %52 21 609 570
Eamings per share (pence)® o1 e TR T ag KRSE 2590 w6 A 36 593
Debt ratio% #6773 sz 26 a3 RWHStomberg 48 M2 LG LA
Bonus rating 90 105 101 105  1os 5 Aheame - - - - 5
2 North Sea average realisali » Repl nt cost profit before exceptional items 2327 1,838 139 4’304 4’054

At the end of each year, the Remuneration Committee
establishes a rating based on the achievement of targets set
out in the performance contracts. When targets are achieved,
the full target bonus of 70% of base salary is payable to directors.
A maximum bonus of 77% of base salary is payable when financial
targets have been substantially exceeded.

Underperformance against targets will result in bonus awards of
less than the target amount and, possibly, nc payment at all. When
the target bonus is earned, executive annual remuneration levels
can reach the top quartile of the relevant employment market.

1997 annual remuneration

1997 has been another year of outstanding performance in
BP. which is a significant achievement considering the very
high standards set in previous years. The trend of cortinuing
improvemert in financial performance and associated bonus
ratings is shown in the above table.

Profit is one of the key financial measures in the 1997 Group
Performance Contract. Earnings of $4.6 billion represented
a 13% increase over 1996 and exceedad the target. A significant
glernent, in excess of $0.5 billion after tax, was sustainable profit
improvemant achieved through reducing costs and increasing
volumes across all business segments.

Once again, the return on average capital employed of 17%
was the highest among the oil majors. Net cash flow of $0.4 billion
in 1997 was just below the 1998 level in spite of the strong increase
in cash generated from operations. The principal reason was the
increased level of investment, including the purchase of the
shareholding in A O Sidanco during the year.

Financial performance accounts for a maximum of 80 points
in the overall rating and the Remuneration Committee decided
to award the maximum.

The other elements of the performance contract in 1997
are called The Priorities for Acticn. These include producing
competitive returns on assets, the development of relationship,
pecple and organisational issues, techinoclogy management and
HSE (health, safety and environment}. Good progress was mads
during the vear, but the company remains determined to achieve

Afrom date of appointment

b To date of retirement

This brings the total award for 1997 to 106 out of a possible
maximum of 110,

The table above represents annual remuneration earned by
and paid to executive directors in the 1997 financial year, with
the exception of bonuses (earned in 1997 but paid in 1998).

Mr Seal retired on 1 September 1897, and Dr Gibson-Smith
was appointed to the board on the same date. Dr Stemberg’s
salary was set in relation to comparable German salaries.

The Long Term Performance Plan
The Long Term Performance Plan was introduced in 1991 to link a
significant part of participants’ future remuneration to the creation
of long-term value for sharehclders. There are now 365 participants
in the Plan in 18 countries. Depending on the technical constraints
in each country in which the Plan is operated, and whether the
long-term targets in the Plan are met, the committee may award
shares to participants or autharise funds for the purchase of shares
by participants.

The plan consists of rolling three-year performance periods.
At the begihning of the performance period, participants receive
a grant of performance units, but only If they acquire a personal

Long term performance plans

Performance period of Plan 1994-98 1945-97 1996-98  1897-99
Year of award 1997 1998 1988 1999 2000
Value of Polential Award Maximum
award? award?  value® potential awards
£'000 {shares} £'000 {number of shares)

Gurrent executive directors

E J P Browne 821 100,200 815 81,300 81,300
T S 58,400 ..... P 64,4[}{]81 :300
G 8211[}0,20{] ,,,,, die 81,30081 !300
e S 371500305 ...... 5580070,000

KR Seal 821 100,200 815 54,200 27,100
TheLordSlmGnoleghbury .............. g s R e
SJAhearne ....................................... By IR T T A
e g R et S

5,267 454,900 3,700 498,600 449,400

aven higher standards.
The committeg awarded 46 pcints for these elements out of

2 Based on average market price of BP shares on date of award (£6.84)
b Based on assessed performante and the other terms of the Plan
©gased on market price of BP shares on 9 February 1998 (£8.13)

a possible maximum of 50.




REPORT OF THE RE

MUNERATION COMMITTEE

shareholding in BP equal 1o at least 10% of their maximum
potential award from the Plan.

The primary performance measure for the Plan is BP's total
shareholder return in relation to a chesen peer group of seven major
oil companies (Amoco, Arco, Chevron, Bxxon, Mebil, Shell Transpaort
and Trading, and Texaco). This measure of total shareholder
return eliminates the differential growth glements attributable to
rmavements in the UK and US markets. Participants benefit only
when they deliver hard business resuits that benefit sharsholders.

For example, the maximum award may be made only when
BP's performance exceeds all the selected competitors and
performance is also satisfactory against the secendary measures of
trends in cash flow, return on capital employed, earnings per share
and the absolute magnitude of BP’s shareholder return. For second
and lower rankings, award levels will De adjusted pro rata to the
growth in total shareholder return relative to the lead competitor.
No award will be made to directors if BP's performance is below
the median of the selected competitors.

Any awards from the Plan are taxable in full and sufficient shares
will be released immediatsty and sold only to mest the relevant tax
liability. Serving recipients are then obliged to retain the balance of
the shares from the award for a number of years. Shares awarded
in 1998 under the 1995 Plan will be retained until 2000. For all
subsequent Plans the retention periocd was increased to three vears,

By requiring an up-front investment in shares, and retaining any
shares awarded for a number of years, the LTPP ensures that BP's
top leaders hald significant sharenoldings in BP. This reinforces the
alignment of interests between executives and shareholders further.

Participation in the 1984 and 1995 Plans was conditional on
the transfer of an interest from the criginal 1991 Plan, and not al!
directors elected to make that transfer.

Directors’ share options

Humber of options

shareholder return against the market (%)
144

120

100

80

60
End 1994 95 96 g7
WBP  Range of ather oil majors

The 1995 Plan

OCver the three-year Plan pericd, BP has outperformed the other major
oil companies on the primary measure {see above), with BP achieving
growth in totai shareholder return of 19.5%, which exceeded the
growth in the UK market.

On the secondary measures toe, BP has made substantial progress.
Earnings per share increased by 22 pence over the three-year
performance period, cash flow was stronger and the retum on capital
employed rose from 11% in 1994 10 17% in 1997. Net debt has been
reduced to $6.9 billion from $10.2 billion over the three-year period.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed these outcomes
in the light of the performance conditions specified at the start of the
1995 Plan. It has concluded that a 100% award may be mads under
the Plan,

The potential awards to executive directors, including an indicative
range of potential awards under the 1996 and 1297 Plans, are set
out in the Long Term Perfermance Plans table on page 59.

The total potential number of shares that may be awarded to
all participants under the 1995 Plan is 2,700,000 with a2 value of

Exercise Market price at Date
During the year price date of exercise from which Expiry
A1/1/97 Granted Exercised A 31A2/97 £ 3 exercisable date
EJPBrowne 79400 - - 79,400 3.38 27/3/93 26/3/00
R 9101 . L L -/ S T A
- 2,084 - 2,984 5.78% 902 28/2/03
J4GSBuchanan 48000 S 48000 278 9/3/92 8/3/99
.............................................. 800 - T t800 33 27393 28/300
____________________________________________ 30 = 3BA0 206 487 28/2/98
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L O 4 AR - 1 SO -
1,490 - - 1,490 463 e 28/2/02
R F Chase 4662 - - 4,662 3.70° 1/9/00 28/2/01
RLOwer T T T 3840 208 vener 28/2/98
e o T oo A8 o] 119/98  28/2/99
......................... e e T T 2B 000 :
""""""""""" - - - 1,193 5.78° /902 28/2/03
B K Sanderson 3,640 - 3,640 - 2.06° 8.77 1/0/97

T

28/2/03

K R Seal 6,955 - -

1/9/98 28/2/99

3 Options granted under the Savings Related Share Option Scheme. All other options were granted under the Executive Share Option Scheme prior fo 1981

b O appointment on 1 January 1998
© (ptions granted under the Overseas (Supplemental} Share Opticn Scheme
Mo other options were hetd by directors who hefd office during the year

The market price of BP ordinary shares at 31 December 1997 was £8.00 {1996, £7.00). The highest and lowest market prices during 1997 were £9.56 and £6.53 respectively
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£22 million based on a share price of £8.13 {middle markst
quotation as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily
Official List on 9 February 1998).

Participating Share Scheme interests

In 1997, five directors were allocated shares under the Participating
Share Scheme which is available to most UK employees. Under
the participating scheme, the company maiches employees’ own
contribution of shares, all of which are held for a defined period
(see Note 34 on the Accounts, page 46).

Pensions

Pension and cther benefits relate to competitor practice in the

home country of each senior executive. In the UK, eligible staff
can join the BP Pension Scheme, which offers Inland Revenue-
approved retirement benefits, based on final salary.

Schame mermbers’ core benefits, which are non-contributory,
comprise a pension accrual rate of 1/60th of final basic salary for
gach year of sarvice (up to a limit of two-thirds of final basic salary),
a lump-sum death-in-service benefit of three times salary and a
dependant’s benefit of two-thirds of actual or prospective pension.
Normal retirement age is 60, but members whe have more than
30 years' pensionable service at age 55 can opt to retire early
without actuarial reduction to their pension. Post-retirement
pensions are reviewed annually, and increases eguivalent to the
Retail Price Index (up to 5%) are guaranteed.

Managing directers accrue pension at the enhanced rate of
2/60ths of their final basic salary for each year of service as
managing directors {Up to the same two-thirds limit).

None of our UK directors is affected by the ‘pensionable
earnings cap’.

Tre BP Pension Scheme is the principal section of the BP
Pension Fund; the latter is set up in the UK under a trust deed.
Contributions to the Fund are mads on the advice of an actuary
appeinted by the trustees. No contributions were made by the
company during 1997 in respect of pensions accruing under the
BP Pension Scheme.

Pension entitlement Additional  Additional

pension eamed pension eamed

Years of Accrued during the during the

service al entitlement year ended year ended

3n247 at 31/12/97 31/12/97 31112/86

£000 £'000 £:000

EJPBrowne LI 3 e L8
JGSBuchanan - 8B 2o L

RFChase B T L SRR

CSGbson-Smith & w7 L E T

BKSanderson % e o M0

KRSeal 8 a1 0 .

R W H Stomberg 28 335¢ 14¢ 15

@ From date of appointment b At date of retirement ¢ DMZ.84/81

2 At date of retirement

L 61

In accordance with normal German practice, Or Stomberg,
who retired from the main BP board on 31 December 1697, was
a member of the Deutsche BP AG Pension Scheme. This scheme
is not covered by the sarme trust deed and fund as the BP Pension
Scherme, and in 1997 a contribution of DM4.5 million was made on
Dr Stcmberg’s behalf.

Service contracts

In 1896 the committee adopted the policy of one-year notice
periads for future appointments. UK executive directors who
were appointed prior to 1986 continue to hold a contract of
service which includes a two-vear period of notice.

Dr Buchanan and Dr Gibson-8mith have contracts which
include a one-year notice period, as does Mr Clver (appointed
to the board on 1 January 1998). Under each contract, the
company reserves the right to make a payment in lieu of notice.

Dr Stomberg’s full-time secondment to the UK main beard
from Deutsche BP terminated on the date of his retirement,
31 December 1997, He has accepted a part-iime fixed-term
appointment for two years, at a fixed salary of DM1.1 million
a year, as special adviser to the group chief executive on
Eurcpean matters.

Remuneration of chairman

and non-executive directors

The remuneration of the chairman and non-exegLitive directors is
determined by the board as a whole. The chairman receives a fixed
fee. Tne other non-executive directors receive & basic fee and extra
remuneration for their duties on bhoard committees.

Remuneration of chairman
and non-executive directors (£ thousand)

The Lord Simon of Highbury 7 326 241

Sir Patrick Sheehy

The Lord Wright of Richmond 37 41
735 584

©From date of appointment

®Foos are paid to Mr Miles' emplover
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The Board and corporate governance

Sir lan Prosser was appointed a non-executive director on 1 May
1997. The Lord Simon of Highbury resigned as chairman on
7 May te take up a ministerial post in Her Majesty’s government.
Mr P D Sutherland was appointed non-executive chairman on
the same date. Mr K R Seal retired on 1 September, and DrC S
Gibson-Smith was appointed a managing director on the same
date. Dr B W H Stomberg retired on 31 December. Mr R L Clver
was appointed a managing director on 1 January 1968.

BP's articles of association require one-third of the directors
to retire by rotation each year at the company's annual general
meeting, together with directors appointed by the board since the
last annual general meseting. Retiring directors may offer themselves
for re-election. The directors retiring and offering themselves for
re-election at this year's meeting are Mr E J P Browne, DrC 8
Gibson-Smith, Or K N Horn, Mr H M P Miles, Sir Robin Nicholsan,
Mr R L Olver and Sir lan Prosser.

Governance

BP’s beard of directors is responsible for understanding the
requirements of the sharehelders and the political, economic and
social environment in which the group operates. It establishes
group performance ohjectives which are agreed through the annual
performance contract with the group chief executive and managing
directors. It discusses annually and endorses the group strategy
framework and the policies within which the group operates.

It monitors by testing on a regular basis the confidence in or

Directors’ interests in BP ordinary shares

{number of shares} Ingrease in directors’
interests from

3297 VA7 3112/97 to 10/2/93

Current directars

199,745

R W H Stomberg 148,891

20r at date of appointment
¢lncludes 204 ordinary shares held in ADR form
€0n appointment on 1 January 1998

bIngludes 23,507 (36,783) ordinary shares held in ADR form

9 Held in ADR form

risks tc the achiavement of the performance objectives and the
ohservance of the strategy and policies.

There are 15 direciors on the board: the non-exacutive
chairman, the group chief executive, eight non-executive directors
and five managing directors. The non-executive directors bring &
wide range of experience and independence of judgement to the
board. They do nct have service contracts with the company.

Their remuneration is shown on page 61.

The principal board cormmittees and membership are as follows:

The Chairman’s Committee reviews the structure and
effectiveness of the group’s organisation and overall performance of
the group chief executive. It also reviews the succession plans for
all executive directors and any other matters which are appropriate
for the non-executive directors to consider, Members:

Mr P D Sutherland (chafrrman) and all non-executive directors

The Audit Committee reviews the application and effectiveness
of the policies and processes of the group on matters of internal
financial policy, control and risk. It reviews alt group financial
statements and other related documents 1o be sent to share-
holders prior to their submission to the board. The auditors and
the chief financial officer regularly attend the committee’s meetings.
Members: Sir Patrick Sheehy (chairman), Sir James Glover,

Mr H M P Miles, Sir Robin Nicholson, Sir lan Prosser

The Ethics and Environment Assurance Committee reviews
policies and processes which bear upon the group’s reputation and
its community, customer, employee, health, safety, environmental
and other relationships. Mernbers: Mr P D Sutherland (chairman),
Sir James Glover, Dr K N Horn, Sir Robin Nichofsen, The Lord
Wright of Richmond

The Remuneration Commitiee determines on behalf of the
poard the terms of engagement and remuneration of the group
chief executive and managing directors. It also establishes the
principles for the remuneration of other senior executives.

The commitiee’s annual report appears on pages 58-61.
Members: Mr P D Sutheriand {chairman), Mr C F Knight,
Mr H M P Miles, The Lord Wright of Richmond

The Nominations Committee recommends to the board
candidates for appcintment as directors and proposes the directors
to retire by rotation at the annual general meeting. Members:

Mr P D Sutherland (chairman), Mr E J P Browne, and two non-
executive directors

in addition, when necessary a Results Committee is authorised
on behaif of the board to release financial statements and dividend
announcements, and an Equity Committee exercises the board’s
authority o issue and allot shares. The members of both
committess are Mr P D Sutherland {chairman), Mr E J P Browne
and Dr J G S Buchanan.

Threughout 1997, the company complied with the Code of Best
Practice recommended by the Cadbury Committee on the Financial
Aspects of Corporate Governance.
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Directors’ biographies

P D Sutherland, SC, Non-Executive Chairman

Peter Sutherland (51) became chairman on 7 May 1997. He rejoined the
board in 1995 as deputy chairman following service as director-general
of the GATT and the World Trade Organisation. He is chairman of
Goldman Sachs International and a non-executive director of ABB Asea
Brown Boveri and Telefonaktiebolaget { M Ericsson.

E J P Browne, F Eng, Group Chief Executive

John Browne {49} became group chief executive in 1995, He has
been a managing director since 1991, He is a non-executive director
of SmithKline Beacham and the Intel Corporation and a member of
the international advisory board of Daimier-Benz.

Dr J G S Buchanan, Managing Director

John Buchanan {54} became group chief financial officer and a
managing director in 1996. He was formerly group treasurer and chief
executive, BP Finance. He is a non-executive director of Boots and a
member of the UK Accounting Standards Board.

R F Chase, Deputy Group Chief Executive and Managing Director
Rodney Chass (54) became a managing director in 1892. He is deputy
group chief executive and chief executive of the group's refining and
marketing business. He is a non-executive director of the BOC Group.

Dr C 3 Gibson-Smith, Managing Director

Chris Gibson-Smith (52) became a managing director on 1 September
1997. He is responsible for regional management and for group policies
on ethical conduct, employees, relationships and health, safety and
environment.

R L Olver, Managing Director

Dick Olver (51) became a managing director on 1 January 1998, when
he also took over responsibility for BP's exploration and production-
business. He is & non-executive director of Reuters Holdings.

B K Sanderson, Managing Director

Bryan Sanderson (57) became a managing director in 1992, He is
chief executive of BP's chemicals business. A non-executive director
of British Stee!, he is vice president of CEFIC, the European Chemical
Industry Council.

()

Sir James Glover, KCB, MBE, DL, Non-Executive Director

Sir James (68) joined BP's board in 1987 after a career in the British
Army, in which his last appointment was as the Commander-in-Chief,
UK Land Forces. He is chairman of Royal Armouries (International)
and Merlin Communications International.

Dr K N Horn, Non-Executive Director

Karen Horn (54) became a director of BP in 1992, She is senior
managing director and head of the international private bank at Bankers
Trust Company. She is also a director of Eli Lilly, Rubbermaid and TRW.,

C F Knight, Non-Executive Director

Charles Knight (62) has been a BP director since 1987, He is
chairman of Emerson Electric and is a director of Anheuser-Busch,
S8BC Cormmunications and IBM.

H M P Miles, OBE, Non-Executive Director

Michael Miles {(61) became a director of BP in 1994, An éxecutive
director of John Swire & Sons and ING Baring Holdings, he serves on
the boards of Johnson Matthey and BICG. He is a former chairman of
Cathay Pacific Airways.

Sir Robin Nicholson, F Eng, FRS, Non-Executive Director

Sir Robin (63) joined BP's board in 1987, He is chairman of Pilkington
Opfronics, a non-executive director of Rolls-Royce and a member of
the UK government's Councll for Science and Technology.

Sir lan Prosser, Non-Executive Director

Sir lan {54) became a non-executive director on 1 May 1997, He is
chairman and chief executive of Bass, a non-executive director of
Lloyds TSB and a member of the council of the Brewers and Licensed
Retailers Association.

Sir Patrick Sheehy, Non-Executive Director

Sir Patrick (67) became a BF director in 1984. He retired as chairman of
B.A.T Industries in 1995, He is chairman of Marlborough Underwriting
Agency and a non-executive director of Asda Properties and Celtic plc.

The Lord Wright of Richmond, GCMG, Non-Executive Director
Lord Wright (86) joined BP's board in 1991, having been Permanent
Under-Secretary and Head of the UK Diplomatic Service. He is a non-
executive director of De La Rue and an advisory director of Unilever.
He is chairman of the Roval Institute of International Affairs.




THE BOARD AND CORPORATE

GOVERNANGCE

BP ordinary shareholders at 31 December 1997

Percentage Percentage Percentage Percentage
Number of of otal of share Number of of tofal of share
Range of holdings shareholders shareholders capital Category sharehotders shareholders capital
Indiividuals 344,954 92.0 6.6
Companies 2,825 6.8 34
Trust companies
{pension funds etc) 2.0

Total shareholders 375,101

2includes the 6.2% holding of the State of Kuwait

Insurance and .
assurance companies 96 - 1.8

Total shareholders 375,101

The tota! number of ordinary shares in issue at 31 December 1997 was 5,762,583,600, of which approximately 946,529,975 were represented by ADRs — see page 66

At 31 December 1957 there were also 2,386 preference shareholders

Substantial shareholdings
At the date of this report, the company has been notified that
Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as depositary

for American Depositary Receipts (ADRs), holds interests in
942,324,902 ordinary shares (16.27% of the company’s ordinary
share capital). Included in this total are part of the respective
heldings of FMR Cerp and Fidelity International Limited (together
FMR) and of the Kuwait Investment Office (KIO). Either directly or
through nominees, FMR holds interasts in 271,706,977 ordinary
shares (4.69% of the company's ordinary share capital) and the KIO
in 357,520,000 ordinary shares (6.17% of the company’s ordinary
share capital). The Prudential Corperation group of companies
holds interests in 184,175,023 ordinary shares (3.18% of the
company's ordinary share capital}

Annual General Meeting
The 1898 annual general meeting will be held on Thursday
16 April 1998 at 11.00 a.m. at the Barbican Centre, Silk Street,
Londen. The notice convening the meeting is sent to sharehoiders
separately with this report, together with an explanaticn of the
items of special business 1o be considered at the meeting.

Ernst & Young have expressed their willingness to centinue in
office as auditors and their reappointment will be proposed at the
annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Judith C Hanratty, Secretary 10 February 1998

Report of the auditors

To The British Petroleum Company p.Lc. on corporate governance matters

In addition to our audit of the accounts we have reviewed

the directors’ staterments on pages 23-24, 51 and 62 concerning
the company’s compliance with the paragraphs of the Cadbury
Code of Best Practice specified for our review by the London
Stock Exchange and their adoption of the going concern basis

in preparing the accounts. The cbjective of our review is to draw
attention to any non-compliance with Listing Rules 12.43()

and 12.43{).

We carried out our review in accordance with guidance issued
by the Auditing Practices Board, and assessed whether the directors’
statements cn going concern and internal financial control are
consistent with the information of which we are aware from our
audit. That guidance does not require us to perform the additional
work necessary to, and we do not, express any opinion on the
effectiveness of either the company's system of internal financial
control or its corporate governance procedures nor on the ability
of the company to continue in operational existence.

Opinion

With respect to the directors’ statements on internal financial
control on pages 23-24, other than the opinion on effectiveness,
which is outside the scope of our report, and going concern on
page 51, in our opinion the directors have provided the disclosures
required by the Listing Rules referred to above and such
statements are consistent with the informaticn of which we are
aware from our audit work on the accounts.

Based on enguiry of certain directors and officers of the
company and examination of relevant documents, in our opinion
the directors’ statement on page 62 appropriately reflects the
company's compliance with the other paragraphs of the Code
specified for our review by Listing Rule 12.43().

Ernst & Young
Chartered Accountants

lLondon 10 February 1998




INFORMATION FOR

SHAREHOLDERS

Announcement of dividends and results

Proposed key dates for dividends to be anncunced in 1998 and for
the BP Share Dividend Fian:

101998 -

Period 401997 20 1998 301998
10 Feb 98 5 May 98 4 Aug 98 3 Nov 98

........................ 16Feb9811May98 BTy i S
18Feb98 13May98 .......................... oG

Record or qualfying  20Feb98  15May98  14Aug98 13 Nov 98
){ériéﬁpqﬁ’ lllllll 3Ap S R TR P i e
Payment  5May98  3Aug98  2Nov98  1Feb99

aThe dale by which shareholders must notify the BP Registrar of any change i dividend election betwesn
cash and shares

The group’s half-yvear results will be included in the Half Year Review
which will be sent to shareholders in August,

The following net cash dividends have been announced on the
ordinary shares:

Pence/share Total
1993 8.4
1 994 ......................................................................................................... 105
1995 ........................................................................................................... 1525
1995 ......................................................................................................... 195
1997 ..................................................................................................... 220

Holders of ordinary shares are offered the choice of recelving sither
cash dividends or shares or a combination of both, In 1997, share
dividends were set at a level which was 25% greater than the net
cash dividend. You can change your election by contacting the

BP Registrar.

First and second preference shares
Dividends are paid cn 31 January and 31 July of each year.

Taxation

This section is intended for individual sharehoiders who are
subject to UK taxation only, and does not take into account
overseas taxation.

a) Dividends

Cash dividends

The table sets out the amgunts per share held that were paid

to shareholders who received cash dividends during the 1997/8

tax year.

Qividend/

distribution
+ tax credit

- 656

Dividend/
distribution

Payment date

Tax cregit

Share Dividend Plan

Each new share received under the BP Share Dividend Plan will
be treated for income tax purposes as giving rise to gross income
on which lower rate tax has been paid. The table below sets out
the amounts per new share received during the 1997/8 tax year.

Dividend
Payment date Dividend Notional tax + notienal tax
M&yY 7 179.8p
Aug 97 04.9p
NOVQT L ...................... 1 855p .............................
Febgs ......................... 3133p .................. 2033p ............... 1,0166p

The 'dividend’ amount is also the acquisition value of the shares for
the purpose of capital gains tax.

b) Capital gains tax

The market values of BP shares at 6 April 1865 for the purposes of
capital gains tax, after adiustment for the conversion, sub-division
and capitalisation issue were:

Ordinary shares: £0.213542 per 25p ordinary share
First preference shares: £1.128125 per £1 share
Second preference shares: £1.243750 per £1 share

Since 5 April 1965 there have been rights issues of ordinary
shares as follows:

1 for 13 at £0.2083: the ex-rights date was 28 February 1968
1 for 15 at £0.4283: the ex-rights date was 14 October 1971
1 for 7 at £0.9167: the ex-rights date was 23 June 1881

As from the close of busingss on 5 Octeber 1979, sach £1 unit
of ordinary stock was converted and sub-divided into four ordinary
shares of 25p each, and each existing £1 unit of preference stock
was converted into cne preference share of £1.

With effect from 1 May 1987, a capitalisation issue was made of
two additional ordinary shares of 25p each for each orcinary share
held at the close of business on 15 April 1987,

The market values at 31 March 1982 for the purposes of capital
gains tax indexation allcwance, after adjustment for the capitalisation
issue referred to above, were:

Ordinary shares: £0.95 per 25p ordinary share
First preference shares: £0.565 per £1 share
Second preference shares: £0.645 per £1 share

The Inland Revenue publishes indexation tables and leaflets
about capital gains tax which are available from local tax offices.
if you are in any doubt or if vou need any further help, you

should consult an appropriate financial adviser.




INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

{ 66 }
Information for non-UK sharcholders
United States and Canada Quarterly dividends? 10 20 30 40 Yotal
BP shares are traded in the USA on the New York Stock Exchange 1993 Uss 0.210 0201 0198 0.196 0.805
in the form of American Depositary Shares (ADSs] and held in the CANS 0267 0.250 0258 0253 1.048
form of American Depositary Receipts {ADRs). With effect from 1094 US$ 0239 0245 0260 0299 1.043
6 June 1997, the company split existing ADRs on a two-for-one CANS 0331 0340 0351 0419 1.441
pams so.that an ADR is rjow equivalent to l3|>< ordlnary _shares. The 1995 US§ 0306 0409 0403 0415 1.533
information shown on this page reflects this split. Details of trading CANS 0415 0554 0544 0569 2082
activity are published under the abbreviation ‘BritPt’ in the stock ’ - - . -
tables of most daily newspapers. 1996 Us$ 0407 0492 0525 0547 1911

1947 10969 CAN$ 0555 0676 0701 0739 26N
ADR market price ranges (USS) High Low High Low 1997 Us$ 0.542 0572 0.588 0.599 230
1st Quarter 73. 644 54 474 CANS  0.740 0789 0825 0859 3.222
2nd Quarter 75% 65'%s 554 51%s 2 1993-96 figures have been restated foflowing the ADR split
3rd Quarter 93 4% 62" 4%
4th Quarter 91% 19 % 62% BP has been advised by its US counsel that in respect of qualifying

21998 figures have been restated following the ADR spfit

Cash dividends

ADR holders are generally eligible for all dividends or other
entitlements attaching to the underlying shares of BP and recelve
ali cash dividends in US dollars (although Canadian resident ADR
halders ordinarily receiva their dividends in Canadian dollars).

With respect to qualifying US resident ADR holders, the current
doubie tax convention between the UK and the USA includes
provisions which entifle them to a refund of the currently applicable
20/80ths UK tax credit attached to the dividend, less a currently
applicable 15% UK withhclding tax charged on the sum of the
dividend and he tax credit.

Under the arrangements made by Morgan Guaranty Trust
Company of New York, payment of the tax credit refund, net of the
UK withholding tax, is made to a qualifying US resident ADR holder
who completes the declaration on the reverse of the dividend check
and presents it for payment within three months from its date of
issue.

Similar arrangements have also been made in respect of
qualifying Canadlian resident ADR holders.

The exchange rate for dividend payments for US and Canadian
ADR holders is that ruling at 5.00 p.m. London time on the
busingss day preceding the date of announcement.

The following dividends have been anncunced on ADRs for the
undermenticned periods:

__Germany, Switzerland and Japar.

US resident ADR holders, subject to certain imitations, the 15%
withholding tax will be treated as a foreign income tax that is
eligible for credit against the holder’s federal income taxes.

This credit may be obtained by filing Form 1116 ‘Computation of
Foreign Tax Credit” with the ADR holder’s Federal Income Tax return.

Reports to ADR holders

ADR holders receive the annual and haif-yearly reports issued to
shareholders. If they are a holder of record (i.e. if the ADRs are held
by them directly) the annual and half-yearly reports will be sent to
themn at the record address. If the ADRs are held in a ‘Street Name' at
a bank or brokerage firm, that institution is responsible for obtaining
the materials and forwarding them to the holders.

BP is subject to the requirements for information of the US
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as they appiy to foreign
companies. It files with the SEC the Annual Report on Form 20-F
{which corresponds to a 10-K for a US corporation) and other
information as required.

Annual General Meeting
The 1998 annual general masting of the company takes place in
London on Thursday 16 April.

On request, Morgan Guaranty will appoint ADR holders as its
proxy; this enables holders to attend the meeting and, on a poll,
to vote the underlying ordinary shares,

Europe and Japan
BPR shares are traded on stock exchanges in the UK, France,




Shareholder enquiries

Administration

If you have any queries about the administration of shareholdings
such as change of address, change of ownership, dividend
payments and the share dividend plan please contact the Registrar
or ADR managers.

UK - Registrar’s Office

The BP Registrar

Lloyds Bank Registrars )
The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN93 6DA
Telephone: {(+44) 01903 502541

Fax: (+44) 01903 833371

USA - ADR Administration

Morgan ADR Service Center

PO Box 8205, Boston, MA 02266-8205
Telephone: {+1) 781-575-4328

Toli free in the USA 800-428-4237

Canada - ADR Administration

CIBC Mellon Trust Company

383 University Avenue, Sth Floor, PO Box 7010

Adelaide Street Postal Station, Toronte, Ontario M5C 2WS
Telephone: (+1) 416-813-4600

Toll free in Canada 800-387-0825

Japan

The Mitsubishi Trust and Banking Corporation

7-7 Nishi-lkebukure 1-chome, Toshima-ku, Tokyo 171
Telephone: (+81) 03-5391-7029

Fax: (+81) 03-5391-1911

Other queries
Any other gueries can be addressed to BP's investor Relations
offices in the following countries:

UK
- The British Petroleum Company p.l.c.
Britannic House, 1 Finsbury Circus, London EC2M 7BA
Telephone: {(+44) 0171-496 4632
Switchboard: (+44) 0171-496 4000
Fax: (+44) 0171-486 4570
E-mail: ir@bp.com

USA

The British Petroleumn Company p.l.c.
535 Madison Avenue - 22nd Floor
New York, NY 10022-4121
Telephene: {(+1) 212-451-8070

Toll free in the USA 800-478-7553
Fax: (+1} 212-451-8088

FURTHER INFORMATION

Other published information

Publications

Caopies of reports fled by the company with the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission, together with a range of
other pubfications, such as B8P HSE Facts 1987 Health, Safety
and the Envirorment; BP Social Report 1997; BP Financial and
Operating information 1993-1997; and the BP Statistical Review
of World Energy, can be obtained from Investor Retations offices.

Cassettes for visually impaired shareholders

Highlights from the BF Annual Report are available to visually
impaired shareholders on audio cassette. Copies are available,
free of charge, from Investor Relations offices.

Internet
BP’s home page on the Internet “hitp/Avww.bp.com” includes
inforrmation on BPs activities and financial information.

Share price information

Prices are published in most newspapers and also in the UK
on Ceefax and Teletext, or by dialling 0881 222335

{£0p a minute at all times).

Registered Office
Britannic House, 1 Finsbury Circus, London EC2M 78A, UK
Registered in England and Wales No. 102498
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